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Selected Financial Highlights
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Note: Included in the full year 2001 results are after-tax charges for restructuring and excess inventory in the amount of $15.0 million ($.08 per share). Excluding these charges, net income
for the year 2001 was $128.4 million (.65 per share). Included in the full year 2000 results are special charges to after-tax earnings of $34.0 miflion (.17 per share); excluding these
charges net income would have been $139.7 million or $1.00 per share. Included in the full year 1998 results are $7.6 million of acquired research and development expenses, excluding
these charges net income would have been $155.1 million or $.80 per share.

Dollars are in thousands except for diluted earnings per share. Farnings per share and share data reflect a two-for-one stock split effected in 1999, Alf results have been restated for the
Financial Accounting Standards Board's Emerging Issues Task Force issue No. 00-10, "Accounting for Shipping and Handling Fees and Costs”.




Dear Fellow
Shareholder:

The year 2001 has left its impression upon us.
For APC, it was the culmination of twenty
vears in business. But the road to success is a
long one. Now, we must build on our history

and continue to improve.

Undoubtedly, 2001 was not the high peint of
the past twenty years. It was a challenging
year by any standards.

Few companies were able to avoid the
economic downturn and dramatic drop in
spending, and none were hit harder than
those within core information technology (IT)
and communications end markets.

APC performed extremely well in these
tough times. In fact, | believe we came
through 2001 much better than did most of
our competitors and peers.

e APC’s revenues for the year outperformed
the year-over-year declines that much of the
broad IT industry participants experienced.

¢ \We remained profitable during a time
when many others did not.

¢ \We worked diligently to reduce our costs,
making extremely difficult decisions along
the way, but knowing they were essential
for the continued success of APC.

This period has allowed us to heighten our
focus on strategic initiatives. Our objective is
simple: to set APC apart from the competi-
tion within each segment we compete in,
thereby aligning the Company to be the best
positioned in our industry to capitalize on a
market recovery when it arrives. Innovation,
competitive focus, strategic market expansion
and corporate efficiency are at the center of
these efforts. They play a role in each and
every decision we make. To be effective they
must touch all corporate activities from
product definition to manufacturing to delivery
and support.

Innovation oy

We have tasked the APC
team with the ongoing

v

challenge of identifying

new and better ways to
do everything. The basis
of this initiative is product innovation: the
cornerstone of APC's success over the years.
Our objective is to be the best at under-
standing what our customers need and to
bring these offerings to market with the
same high quality and price-to-performance
package that APC customers deserve
and expect.

As we have expanded intoc new markets via
acquisition, the challenge is even greater.
First, we must identify companies with a
unique value-add that benefits the APC
portfolio. Next, we must follow up that
investment with product and business
innovation, thereby enabling this new business
to reach the next level.

Simply put, we want to redefine the markets
we are in. It is something we must do every
day, but
overnight. It is also important to constantly

it cannot be accomplished
remember that innovation is not confined to
product development. Instead, we can't be
afraid to rewrite the rules of how we are
doing business. To be successful, every
aspect of our business must evolve,

Competitive Focus

We must not lose sight of our competition.
From day one, the APC team has understood
that doing so would be a fatal mistake from
which recovery would be impossible. This
philosophy has been instrumental in building
a leadership position within our industry. We
plan to be increasingly aggressive in dealing
with our competition. This must encompass
all our competitive tools, from product devel-
opment and depth to quality and price to

“..aligning the Company to be the

best positioned in our industry
to capitalize on a market

recovery when it arrives.”




marketing and distribution to service and
support. Qur goal is to be the standard in all
our markets, regardiess of application, com-
pany size or geographic location. This is not
an easy challenge. Our industry is competi-

ive across the globe and we must be at the
§top of our game to succeed.

trategic Marleet Expansion

ver the past several years, we have

i§ dramatically expanded our market opportunity

by adding new businesses and new products
to our global, end-to-end, NonStop Networking™
roduct portfolio.

7 /\We have expanded selectively and strategically,

: i 2iming to enter and expand only within markets

“Our industry is

competitive across the
globe and we must be
at the top of our game

to succeed.”

that offer favorable long-term results. During
2001, via acquisition, we added broadband
power products to our communications
solutions as well as battery management
technology for our large 3-phase uninterruptible
power supply {UPS) system offarings.

We also opened a new manufacturing facility

in Brazil. We know that having a local presence
is essential for us to succeed in a market.
Entering meaningful markets — like Brazil —
is a smart investment for APC, and we will
continue to do so when such opportunities
present themselves.

“We believe that difficult market
conditions require smart investments,

not complete retrenchment.”

In 2001, APC was named
Computer Resslier News’
Channel Champion in the UPS
category for the 8th year

in a row,

At the same time, our internal product
development has been very active, adding
complementary product offerings to expand
the APC portfolio. Our focus has been on
identifying innovative technologies, strategic
customer groups and corresponding busi-
nesses that allow us to build upon our core

competencies while augmenting our traditional
UPS and power protection offerings.

Corporate Efficiency

The market conditions of 2001 truly height-

ened every company’s focus on spending,
and APC was no exception. We worked
aggressively to consolidate facilities, reduce
overhead and allocate our dollars more effec-
tively. We made a great deal of progress, but
we must remain vigilant in the process.

In concert with our innovation, competitive
focus, and strategic market expansion initia-
tives, we have continued investing in research
and development and stayed opportunistic on
the merger and acquisition front. We believe
that difficult market conditions require smart
investments, not complete retrenchment.

Despite the challenging macro environment,
we are very excited about the opportunities
that lie ahead for APC. We will pursue
opportunities to define new, and redefine
existing, industry standards via innovation in
our markets. We will seek opportunities to
set us apart from the competition. We will
capitalize on opportunities to identify and
enter new markets that expand APC'’s reach,
while building on our strengths. Finally, we
will act on opportunities to streamline our|
Company, making us stronger and more
focused in the process. These are aggressive
endeavors but | am confident in our ability to
execute against them.

Thank you for your continued support and
belief in APC.

Rodger B. Dowdeli, Jr.
Chairman, President, and CEO




2001 marked APC’s 20th year in business. All that we heve learned in the last twe decades

1served us very W@UU im 2001, as we drew upon our extensive knewledge of merkets, custemers,
“Tend tschnolo o'y v (@ werk @m@ﬁf@ﬁ {for our custemers and @h@ﬁ@h@ﬂ@]@m I in our sarlier years

we-were ks the young athlete whe weon on sheer determination, the yesrs sinee sew us

meaturs inte the seasened pro whe the ecompetition with brains a8 much as brawn.

Lest years diffeult seonomie climete was ulimetely empowsring: rether than faes unesrReinty
with Ineetion, we sat in plece reductions, consolideted manufecturing te lewer and
Improve servics, and werked (o effeetively preritze compeany efferts. The result? Teday
Is In a8 strong a positieon as ever te provids Legendary Reliability™ selutions te customerns.

DATA CENTERS/ AGTESS PROVIDER
FACILITIES NETWORKS
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A key part of werking smerier s heving the abllity te recegnize & markst epperunily and
re-lnvent yeur preduct o offer custemers & unigue selutien. That's how we got started in the
uninterruptible supply (UPS) business. We & procuct thet pimerily in
incdustrial applicetions and teflered i to the then-burgeoning PC merket. The produst wes
essentlelly the same — & b @rrv backup pewer supply. Whet was revelutionary was how we
clevaliepad it from an incustriel plees of equipment to an integral compenent ef compuier epsraions.

Ultianately, ﬁUﬂﬁ@ @@@l}ﬂ resulted in APC’s core produst offerings for business and heme
users. APC! @ Back-UPS® and Smar- UP@O Tamilies basame the standard In power selutions for
custemers werldwide. As we expend into new geographies and markets, the recognition and
ewards we are presenied with is & dear indicatien thet this standerd remalins today.

: ﬂm@“iﬁw@ towlk & similar @@@B‘ﬂ 1o the date center $peee, en anse that trediienally hes

vired large power systems. As with backup selutiens in the 80s, the lerge date eenter
power systems were originelly used In incusteiel, fecliity, or less dynamie envirenments,
Hewaver, for deta center managers oversesing en entire LAN in ene room, the ervirenment

Is ever-chenging. What's mere, in 2001, these managers were feced with capltal spending

morateriums and shrinking budgets, desplie cemands to ensure business continuity and

2457 avallebility. When we talked with. consulting engineers, data eenter architests, and [T
and facility menagers, the message weas loud and clsar: minimizs large up-front expenses for
unsealable legacy sysiems and redeline the cconemics of pewer systems. We responced

lwith the development of PewerStruXure™, mede available for sale in 2002

I




APC Is polsed to revelutionize the date centerffacility industry with the 2002 lsunsh of the ARPC
PowerStruXurs, & Scalable Data Center Architecture for Infrastructure @n Demand”. Bullt on & patent-
pending, sysiematic approaech, it usses standardized, pre-asserbled cormpenents that reduce up-frent '
capitel nvestments, simplify eperation, and scale as the application grows. While addressing these -
essantial requirements of tedey’s data eenter envirenment, PowerStruXure alse drametically acceleraies

deployment sehedules, getiing customers inte business faster and &t & lowsr cost. @@m@@@ﬁ@é @éa&ﬁ@
recitional systems are foreed to bufld out te full eapacity @@dé& éﬁﬁé; y@ﬁ 100% of the deslgned capacity

is seldom reached. This resulis In unreceverable capital and the maintenancs of expensive service

sontracts on under-utflized systems. Because PowerStruXure (ets customers bulld eut capacity only

s It Is required, the capital outley is eptimized and utllizetion rates are much higher. Higher villizetien - - - - 7=
rates with a greatly reduced capital cost can lead to positive cash fows. o

Although new io the market, APC is reinventing hew date eenters and facilities are supported, bringing

custemers selutiens to fssues that define the sueeess of their eperations. - e

L T
B




Data Centers/Facilities:
Network Resiliency

B |nnovation within the data center

B space was not confined to

PowerStruXure. We also announced

i the largest static UPS available in the
industry with the new 1.6 Megawatt
Symmetra® MW, allowing us to
address previously untapped large
power-scale markets.

= APC's newest power distribution unit
is also unique in that it boasts the

 largest number of sub-feed breakers

i in a 3-phase PDU. We added new

i battery monitoring and management
technology to simplify large UPS
operation, and we continued to

¢ enhance our accessory solutions

. with offerings including the

¢ NetShelter® VX, Symmetra
Rack-Mount Power Array®, and
other management tools.

Nd\}vi,ia{ a time when every IT
investment is made with the most
cost-conscious intentions, availability
must be implemented as intelligently
as possible. APC answers the ques-
tions that data center and facility
managers face today, and helps
them plan for capacity that may be
needed tomorrow.

Q@ “Helping customers and partners develop, test and fine-tune their
software applications in the Microsoft. Net environment is our mission.

APC's PowerStruXure, which was installed and commissioned
literally in a matter of hours in our data center, provides us with a
scalable infrastructure for managing the power to these applications.”

jcrosoft
nology
center




In the pest several years, we have aggressively pursusd an acgulsition strategy to expand our business - =~ T —

and penetrate new markets. We have suceessiully identified and purchesed compenies with -~

complementary technologies and true value-add differentietion. We are now in the precess of B@v@c@@ﬁm@ 1 e T
ABC’s teehnical, marksting, end competiive strengths within hese produst lines to enhence our leadership -
position In speeific market segments. e R

o the new IT budget dynamies. PR

those needs changed drametieally with the econemis downturn of 2009, we were already in @ position

%0 offer & unigue APC selution. PowerStruXure net only addresses thelr pewer needs: it also responds

;' “We have not had a single power supply

! the installation of the APC products.”

Ed Cortis
Network Manager
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incident disrupting the data capturing since

— Business Newarks:
— A the Care

In 2001, companies had to adhere to
tight capital budgets while meeting the
constantly expanding demands placed
on their IT solutions. APC's extensive
offering of power, network management,
and availability products are key to
solving this dilemma, providing the
robust protection and management
tools that IT professionals now require.

APC's award-winning Smart-UPS line :
- continued to evolve during 2001, with
- new solutions tailored for many of the
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" new trends in the server environment.
- We introduced new Smart-UPS for

voice-over-|P, telecom, and other
mission-critical applications.

2001 was teeming with introductions to :
make managing a network easier than -

ever. We revamped our PowerChute®

family with the launch of three revo- .

lutionary new software products,

" customized to address the specific

needs of consumers, business, and
enterprises. We also expanded our

- Linux support, introducing PowerChute
- plus for Red Hat Linux 7.1.

- essential for measuring success.
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Following a successful collaboré?i'on
on Windows® 2000, we worked with
Microsoft to develop UPS management
within their new Windows”® XP
operating system.

The return on IT investments is being
watched more closely now than
perhaps ever before. Companies
implementing new systems are doing
so only if measurable financial or
competitive returns can be achieved.
Many of these new applications
offer compelling opportunities for
APC, as availability is absolutely




== Aecess Provider Netwerks: | | ]
~ Conselidation and Breadth of Semvice L

"« Expanded our popular PowerShield” DC
power system line , ]

'APC has been addressing the global build-out
of telecommunications applications, actively
building an industry-leading technology portfolio o

. . - » Added product support for customer B
for access provider networks. Through internal - ) i : :
. . premise devices serving apartment and .
development and strategic acquisition, we . o o e
. . small office buildings »
have been adding products to our offering for

these customers. Among the 2C01 highlights: . With a wide array of both AC- and DC-based

solutions, APC can hel ess providers k :
j* Introduced a scalable DC power system an Nelp access proviers keep

f * the service agreement promises made to their
{ . :

i* Integrated Web/SNMP management into our

line of DC power systems

| customers.

We are committed to supporting the broad o =y
- needs of the industry by protecting data wher-
" ever itis created, transmitted, or stored.
“The goal of our APC Symmetra is to offer up ]

to two hours of runtime to the Telecom room ]

© during a blackout. The building has its own
power generator for longer blackouts. if the
_ generator fails, we have APC PowerChute

* software installed in each server to automatically |

shut down servers {within 15 minutes on

' average) to avoid data loss.”

Ruhens Cavalcante Lima i
f Information Technology Manager :
1C|sco Systems Brazil, Sdo Paulo, Brazil

ol

m uh@ L@?@Wﬂ@@f @0 oUF qu @hﬁ on @f? Advm@@ P@v@w@ an ﬁ@@ﬁ@m SRtree ﬂmt@ ﬁh@

~ . space but not cemmen In the DE power market.

S @@mm@@ﬂ@@ﬁﬁ@@@ market, wfm[@h typleally reliss on DC pewer. W then @mh@moﬁ eur @@nwotf @@
by-bullding in medularity and edding management capabllities, features thet are standerd in the T

 Similesly effective cross-pellination assurred after our acquisition of Alrflow. The company’s precision

7 coeling technelegy had besn used exslusively in largs deta center Installetions. ARer the acquisition,
 wetook the precision eeoling coneept and epplied it to smeller server rooms where & grewing amoeunt

otrack-mounted eguipment generates inereasing levels of l‘m@@ﬁo N@W fihe NetwerkAIR™ 1000 gives

%:m@@@@@[r@ & porteble, compact solut! o for spot ling IT uwﬁ[@m@m LTI T T T -

s in & cynamie ﬁm@ﬂw@ﬁm ©w sucesss demands thet we meve with the m&af&z@ﬁo g@@] m@ @rod@@ﬁ@

— "@m@] @@Nﬁ@@@ thet selve cUrTent customer jssues and antleipete future emes. o —




Home/Small 0ifes:

Faster Connectiens t Wiere Eqguipment

In the coming years, consumers can
expect to see a growing number of
innovative electronics become
available. Each of these new devices
increases the reliance on PC-based

T or “smart” electronics. As this reliance -

grows, the need to keep these devices
available becomes more important,
as does the need to protect
investments in expensive equipment.

APC’s offering kept right in step with
these consumer trends. Qur new

Back-UPS VS integrates broadband
protection for high-speed Internet

lines with battery backup. The new
Back-UPS CS, with USB (Universal
Serial Bus) communications and DSL
protection, met with much fanfare,

winning a series of awards worldwide

following its i ion.
ollowing its introduction Claude Felizardo

As the digital future unfolds onthe ~ Monrovia, California

home front, APC will enable consumers
to protect their hardware and internal
data while ensuring the availability -
of reliable power. With APC's help,
people can keep their digital world up

and running.
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Lagendery Relisbily”

Rin Memory

Shawn M. Nassaney
1976-2000

On Seprember 11, 2000 APC lost & trusted cellsague. H's many frieads, ‘emily, and co-warkers miss Aim svery day

In honer of Shawnr, & scheiarship fund hes been ssizblisked in his neme. Cenations can ke Mads te:

Shewn M. Nessansy Memarial Sehelarship Fund
/o Bryant Cellege
1150 Douglas Pika
Smitthfield, Rl 02917-1284
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ltem 1. Description of Business

American Pewer Conversion Corporation

American Power Conversion Corporation, APC, designs, develops,
manufactures, and markets power protection and management
solutions for computer, communications, and electronic applica-
tions worldwide. Our products include:

° uninterruptible power supply products, commonly
known as UPSs;

© DC-power systems:

o glectrical surge protection devices, also known as
surge suppressors;

° power conditioning products:
© precision cooling equipment; and
° associated software, services, and accessories.

These products are used with sensitive electronic devices
which rely on electric utility power including, but not limited to,
home electronics, PCs, high-performance computer worksta-
tions, servers, networking equipment, communications equip-
ment, Internetworking equipment, data centers, mainframe
computers, and facilities.

Our UPS products regulate the flow of utility power to ensure safe
and clean power to the protected equipment and provide seamless
back-up power in the event of the loss of utility power. The back-up
power lasts for a period of time sufficient to enable the user to con-
tinue computer operations, conduct an orderly shutdown of the pro-
tected equipment, preserve data, work through short power outages
or, in some cases, continue operating for several hours or longer.

Our DC-power systems are highly configurable designs that
continuously monitor and isolate end-user equipment from utility
voltage fluctuations, frequency variations, and electrical noise. In the
event of a power failure, the DC products seamlessly provide back-
up power for critical communications networks, allowing users
emergency access to these networks for a period of many hours.

Our surge protection devices and power conditioning products
provide protection from electrical power surges and noise in the
flow of utility power. APC's precision cooling equipment regu-
lates temperature and humidity. Qur software and accessory
solutions enhance monitoring, management, and performance of
our products, and our service offerings assist the end-user with
installation, configuration, and maintenance of our products.

Segmenis

APC operates primarily within one industry consisting of three
reportable operating segments by which we manage our busi-
ness and from which various offerings are commonly combined
to develop a total solution for the customer. These efforts prima-
rily incorporate the design, manufacture, and marketing of power
protection equipment and related software and accessories for
computer, communications, and related equipment. Our three
segments are: Small Systems, Large Systems, and Other. Each
of these segments address global markets.

The Small Systems segment develops power devices and acces-
sories for servers and networking equipment commeonly used
in local area and wide area networks and for personal
computers and sensitive electronics. Major product offerings
include the Smart-UPS®, Matrix-UPS®, Symmetra® Power Array®,
and Back-UPS® family of UPSs. Also included are the SurgeArrest®
surge suppressors as well as cabling and connectivity solutions.
Additional accessories and software products are offered to
enhance the management of these networks. Products include
PowerChute® software, MasterSwitch™ power distribution units,
and NetShelter® server enclosures. Products are sold to home
and commercial users primarily through an indirect selling model
consisting of computer distributors and dealers, value added
resellers, mass merchandisers, catalog merchandisers, E-com-
merce vendors, and strategic partnerships.

The Large Systems segment produces products that provide
power and availability for data centers, facilities, and communica-
tions equipment for both commercial and industrial applications.
Product offerings include Silcon® UPSs, NetworkAIR™ precision
cooling equipment, and DC-power systems. Products are sold
to commercial users primarily through an indirect selling model
consisting of value added resellers and strategic partnerships.

The Other segment provides replacement batteries for APC's
UPS products and notebock computers as well as Web-based
informational, product, and selling services.

Information on reportable operating segment net sales, profit
from operations, and depreciation for each of the last three years
is located in Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements in Item 8 of this Report.

APC was incorporated under the laws of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts on March 11, 1981. Executive offices are located
at 132 Fairgrounds Road, West Kingston, Rl 02892, our telephone
number is (401) 789-5735 and our Web site is WWW.apc.com.

Marke? Qverview

The growth of the power protection industry has been fueled by
the proliferation of microprocessor-based equipment and related
systems in the corporate marketplace and in the small
officefhome office environment. Despite recent softress in IT
markets and lower general IT spending and growth in core tech-
nology applications, PCs and servers have become an integral
part of the overall business strategy of many organizations as well
as in many technical, scientific, and manufacturing settings.
Businesses continue to store, manipulate, and transfer data via
local area and wide area networks as well as via corporate
intranets and the Internet. Additionally, while the installation of
large data centers particularly has experienced the same recent
spending decline as PCs and servers, the past few years have
been marked with a general rise in these installations to support
Internet-based market and corporate IT needs.

We believe that the increased awareness of the costs and lost
productivity associated with poor power quality has increased
demand for power protection products. Complete failures, surges,
or sags in the electrical power supplied by a utility can cause com-
puters and electronic systems to malfunction, resulting in costly
downtime, damaged or lost data files, and damaged hardware.




A UPS protects against these power disturbances by providing
continuous power automatically and virtually instantaneously after
the electric power supply is interrupted. UPSs also provide line
filtering and protection against surges or sags while the electric
utility is available. The products also enhance productivity through
the continued availability of networks, sensitive electronics, and
even facilities during power outages. In international regions, power
quality often results in varied levels of distortions and, as a result,
these areas provide us with additional opportunities for our products.

In 2001, we continued to expand and enhance the overall prod-
uct and service offering throughout our business. Internal product
development resulted in the introduction of a number of new
UPS and accessory products as well as new power and network
management products. Through acquisition we added battery
management technology and broadband power solutions to
enhance our Large Systems offerings. Our business continued to
be impacted by the difficult macro-economic environment and
slow down in our core end markets, including PCs, servers, data
centers and communications.

In the first quarter of 2002, APC introduced PowerStruXure™, a
patent-pending, systematic approach to building data center phys-
ical infrastructure. This entirely new approach to data center sup-
port simplifies the design, building and management of data cen-
ter infrastructure with an innovative, fully engineered and tested
system. The three initial core solutions that comprise
PowerStruXure are a modular, scalable, N+1 redundant UPS;
zoned, intelligent power distribution; and a next generation rack
enclosure. The product is initially available in North America and is
expected to be available in most countries worldwide during 2002,

Products

APC's strategy is to design and manufacture products that incorpo-
rate high-performance and quality at competitive prices. Our products
are designed to fit seamlessly into the computer, networking, and
communications environments of businesses, homes, small
offices/home offices and outdoor installations. These products are
engineered and extensively tested for compatibility with leading infor-
mation and communications technology hardware and software.

upPs

We currently manufacture a broad range of standard domestic and
international UPS products. Our UPSs are designed for multiple
applications with the principal differences among the products
being the amount of power which can be supplied during an
outage, the length of time for which battery power can be
supplied, the level of intelligent network interfacing capability, and
the number of brownout and over-voltage correction features.
UPSs range from 200 volt-amps, suitable for a PC, to 1.6
megawatt, or MW, suitable for data centers, mainframe comput-
ers, industrial applications or facilities. List prices to end-users
range from approximately $50 to approximately $200,000.

Surge Suppressors

We also offer a line of surge protection products to protect
against power spikes and surges. The principal difference among
the surge suppressor models is the level of protection available
and feature sets of the products. List prices to end-users range
from approximately $13 to approximately $3,500.

|
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DC-power

Our DC-power systems include rectifiers; highly configurable DC
power plant design, installation consulting, and service; and
power distribution equipment for a variety of communications
networks, including cable, wireless, fiber optic, and public
switched telephone network applications. The products can
serve as both the primary power supply and back-up power for
communications equipment. List prices to end-users range from
approximately $500 to over $100,000.

Power Management Software

APC also offers a family of power management software solutions.
The primary software offering is available under the PowerChute
name and provides unattended system shutdown capabilities, UPS
power management, and diagnostic features. PowerChute is avail-
able free of charge for many major operating systems with the
purchase of select UPS units. List prices to end-users for other
PowerChute products start at approximately $69. APC also offers
software packages for advanced monitoring, configuring, and
managing of power resources. Select versions are available free of
charge, while list prices to end-users for these software packages
range from approximately $169 to approximately $10,000.

Power Management Accessories

We also offer a range of power management hardware accessories.
These solutions include add-on hardware to manage and monitor
attached UPS and networking eguipment;, cables and connectivity
equipment; a free-standing rack enclosure product, NetShelter; and
a variety of rack accessories to better utilize precious space in a
computer room. List prices to end-users for accessory products
range from approximately $70 to approximately $1,700.

Precision Cooling

Additionally, APC offers a line of precision cooling products that
regulate temperature and humidity. Products include portable,
floor and ceiling-mounted precision cooling systems as well as
management systems used in a variety of applications including
server rooms, data centers, and communication stations. List
prices range from approximately $900 to approximately $45,000.

Service Programs

Warranties

APC provides service programs to our customers for in-warranty
UPS products and out-of-warranty UPS products, as well as for
on-site services, installation consulting services, remote monitoring
services, power audit services, and network integration services.
Depending on the product, there are standard two-year and one-year
limited warranties covering UPS, DC-power, and NetworkAir
products. Customers can extend the basic warranty period of select
products, at an additional charge, for a period of one or three
additional years. n-warranty service programs allow customers to
return their original unit for repair and, if found defective, we will
replace the original unit with a factory reconditioned unit or, if
requested, repair the original unit and return it to the customer. The
extended warranty can be purchased anytime during the standard
warranty period. For a fixed fee, which varies by model, we will
replace an out-of-warranty UPS unit with a factory reconditioned unit.
We also offer a standard one-year limited warranty which covers
certain Siicon product parts. This warranty can be extended in
annual increments for a period not to exceed ten years. Additionally,
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customers can purchase on-site service, preventative maintenance,
and power availability consulting. On-site service is offered through
APC’s service department and third party vendors. We also offer
Trade-UPS programs for customers to upgrade old APC or competitive
units to new APC units. Most surge suppressor products come with a
lifetime product warranty. APC's Charge-UPS programs provide end-
users the ability to refurbish certain APC Back-UPS and Smart-UPS
units. For UPS units six years of age or less, the program provides a
new two year warranty on an entire UPS system; premium replace-
ment battery; CD of the latest PowerChute software, and prepaid
return freight for the spent battery. Additional options include software
upgrades and the option to have APC perform the battery replacement
and a system check. The program is currently available in North
America and we plan to offer it in other regions.

Equipment Protection Policy

APC offers an Equipment Protection Policy in the U.S., Canada,
and European Community. Depending on the model and country,
the policy provides up to $150,000, 50,000 pounds sterling, or
100,000 euros for repair or replacerment of customers’ hardware
should a surge or lightning strike pass through an APC unit. Other
restrictions also apply. Customers can also register the
ProtectNet® line of data line surge suppressors for a "Double-Up”
Suppiemental Equipment Protection Policy, under which the total
recoverable limit under the Equipment Protection Policy may be
doubled (U.S. and Canada only).

Our products have experienced satisfactory field operating
results, and warranty and Equipment Protection Policy costs
incurred to date have not had a significant impact on the
consolidated results of operations.

Distribution Channels

APC markets its products to businesses, small offices/home
offices, and home users around the world through a variety of dis-
tribution channels. These channels include:

o computer distributors and dealers;
o value added resellers;

° mass merchandisers;

o catalog merchandisers;

o E-commerce vendors; and

o strategic partnerships.

We also sell directly to some large value added resellers,
which typically integrate our products into specialized com-
puter systems and then market turnkey systems to selected
vertical markets. Additionally, certain select products are sold
directly to manufacturers for incorporation into products man-
ufactured or packaged by them.

Two computer distributor customers, Ingram Micro and Tech
Data Product Management, accounted for approximately 15.5%
and 13.3%, respectively, of net sales in 2001, and 14.9% and
11.4%, respectively, of net sales in 2000. No single customer
comprised 10% or more of APC’s net sales in 1939. The major-
ity of our sales to Ingram Micro and Tech Data Product
Management are included in the Small Systems segment.

Sales and Marketing

APC's sales and marketing organizations are primarily responsi-
ble for four activities: sales, marketing, customer service, and
technical support. Our sales force is responsible for relationships
with distributors, dealers, strategic partners, and end-users as
well as developing new distribution channels, particularly in geo-
graphic and product application areas into which we are expand-
ing. We have charged our sales force with providing customers
comprehensive products and services to meet their power avail-
ability and management needs.

Our marketing activities include market research, product
planning, trade shows, sales and pricing strategies, and product
sales literature. We utilize direct marketing efforts domesticatly and
internationally, including direct mailings and print, online/Internet,
radio, and television advertising, as well as exhibiting at computer
trade shows. Customer service is responsible for technical market-
ing inquiries and customer support. APC has developed a number
of programs and technigues to support the distribution channels.
These include, but are not limited to, toll-free phone assistance,
online product and technical information, formal product demon-
strations, and reseller trainings.

Supply Chain Management - Manufacturing, Quality,
Raw Materials, and Distribution

Manufacturing

APC's manufacturing operations are located in the United States,
Brazil, China, India, Ireland, the Philippines, and Switzerland. In 2001,
we reduced our overall capacity and continued moving production to
lower cost areas. This resulted in the closing of manufacturing facili-
ties in England, Denmark and Maryland. As of December 31, 2001,
employee terminations related to the closure of these facilities were
substantially completed. For more information about our manufac-
turing downsizing actions, refer to Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements in [tem 8 of this Report. We believe that our
long-term success depends on, among other things, the ability to
control our costs. We utilize lean "cell" based manufacturing process-
es, automated manufacturing technigues, and extensive quality con-
trol in order to minimize costs and maximize product reliability. In
addition, the design of products and the commonality of parts allow
for efficient circuit board component mounting or insertion, wave sol-
dering, and in-process testing. Quality control procedures are per-
formed at the component, sub-assembly, and finished product tev-
els. We are committed to an ongoing effort to enhance the overall
productivity of our manufacturing facilities.

Quality

APC has been I1SO 14001 and ISO 9001 certified by the
International Organization for Standardization. Qur systems have
been audited to the stringent SO 14001 and ISO 9001 levels at our
manufacturing facilities in Rhode Island, China, India, Ireland, and
the Philippines. The International Organization for Standardization
has also certified our Research and Development Centers in
Massachusetts, Denmark, and England to the ISO 9001 level.

Raw Materials

We generally purchase devices and components from more than
one source where alternative sources are available; however, we
do use sole source suppliers for certain components and certain
finished products. We believe that alternative components for
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these sole source items could be incorporated into our products, if
necessary. While we have been able to obtain adequate supplies of
components from sole source suppliers, the future unavailability of
components from these suppliers could disrupt production and
delivery of products until an alternative source is identified.

Distribution

APC continues to invest in a worldwide distribution network that
delivers our products and services to our customers. We own or
lease distribution centers in numerous countries across the
globe. All distribution centers are connected to our customer
service operations via APC’s Enterprise Resource Planning
system, which enables orders received from any point in the
network to be fulfilled from any distribution center throughout the
world. APC employs several enhanced fulfiliment capabilities in
support of our overall E-commerce initiatives, including the use of
Electronic Data Interchange transactions between APC and our
distributors for receipt of orders, acknowledgement of orders,
and confirmation of shipments. Additionally, we utilize a suite of
Web tools that allows consumers and resellers to view product
information, gain access to pricing information, and place their
orders via the Web.

Product Development

APC's research and development, or R&D, staff includes engineers
and support persons who develop new products and provide engi-
neering support for existing products. Our R&D efforts are also
aimed at reducing cost and total cycle time and improving product
and component quality. Most of these employees are located in two
Massachusetts facilities with additional resources located in Texas,
Denmark, England, and Taiwan. Employees devoted to the improve-
ment and development of software products are located in the West
Kingston, Rhode Island facility and in St. Louis, Missouri, at APC's
subsidiary, Systems Enhancement Corporation. We believe that the
technical expertise of our R&D staff is very important to our growth
as technological change is rapid in our markets.

New introductions in 2001 enhanced our UPS line-up with new
models in our Back-UPS, Smart-UPS and Symmetra families. We
revamped our PowerChute software family introducing three
new versions tailored for home, business and enterprise cus-
tomers. New management and accessory products were also
introduced, including new NetShelter server enclosures plus
monitoring and management tools. Via acquisition, we added
new battery management technology for our three-phase UPS
systems as well as outside plant, networking power solutions to
our broadband power line-up.

Through acquisitions in 2000, APC added DC-power solutions for
communications applications, cabling, and connectivity products
for desktop and networking environments, and precision cooling
equipment for data center and communications gear. For more
information about these acquisitions, refer to the Acquisition sec-
tion included in Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations in Item 7 of this
Report. New UPS solutions introduced during the year from exist-
ing product lines included new Back-UPS Office® models, new
Smart-UPS models, new Symmetra Rack-mount Power Arrays,
and new high end Silcon models in North America. We intro-
duced solutions for mobile PC users, including TravelPower™

laptop power adapters and notebook replacement battery
cartridges. Additional power management, monitoring and serv-
ices were also introduced during the year.

During 1989, APC increased its offerings of products and services
for the enterprise market, specifically, geographically expanding the
availability of the Silcon UPS products, introducing new Symmetra
moedels, and introducing APC's Global Services crganization, which
offers a comprehensive suite of professional and maintenance
services. Hardware introductions primarily focused on enhance-
ments to the SurgeArrest, Smart-UPS, and Back-UPS lines. New
software solutions announced during the year included new
versions of the PowerChute plus software to expand support of
leading operating systems, including support for Microsoft
Windows 2000 Beta 3 and expanded support for Linux, as well as
integration with leading management platforms.

R&D expenditures were $54.6 million or 3.8% of net sales in
2001, $46.9 million or 3.2% of net sales in 2000, and $34.6
million or 2.6% of net sales in 1999.

Intellectual Property

We protect certain proprietary rights in our products as well as
certain proprietary technology developments by seeking patent
protection. We believe that the loss of any such rights concerning
these developments would not have a material adverse effect on
our business. We also license from others certain worldwide
patent rights relating to UPS technology. With respect to protection
of those areas of our technology for which patent protection has
not been sought, we rely on the complexity of our technology,
trade secrecy law, and employee confidentiality agreements.

APC has numerous trademarks registered in the United States
and in many foreign countries. We also have trademark applica-
tions pending domesticaily and internationally. The trademark
"APC" is of principal importance to us. In addition, a number of
other trademarks owned by us have significant importance.

Competition
We believe that we are one of less than ten global companies pro-
viding a full range of UPS products and services worldwide. Many
of our competitors offer competitive products in both the Small and
Large systems space, while some focus on only one segment. Our
principal competitors in the Small Systems space include:

¢ Liebert Corporation, a unit of Emerson Electric Co.;

e Invensys Secure Power, a unit of Invensys pic,
consisting of PowerWare and Best Power,

o MGE UPS Systems, a privately-held French company;

e Trippe Manufacturing Company, a privately-held U.S.
company;

o Phoenixtec Power Company Ltd., a publicly-held
Taiwanese company; and

e Belkin Components, a privately-held U.S. company.
Principal competitors in the Large Systems segment include:

e Liebert Corporation;

o Invensys Secure Power;

® MGE UPS Systemns; and

e Chloride Power, a subsidiary of Chloride Group PLC.
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We also compete with a number of other U.S. and non-U.S. based
companies that offer power protection, DC-power, and other prod-
ucts similar to ours in both segments. Some competitors have
greater financial and other resources than APC. We compete in
the sale of our products on the basis of several factors, including
product performance and quality, marketing, access to distribution
channels, customer service, product design, and price.

International Operations

APC has experienced rapid growth internationally and plans to con-
tinue to expand its international efforts. With a full line of interna-
tionally positioned products already available, we continue to staff
personnel to serve geographical markets of interest. Our manufac-
turing operations outside of the United States are located in Brazil,
China, India, Ireland, the Philippines, and Switzerland. A significant
portion of products in our Small Systems and Large Systems
reportable operating segments are built internationally, particularly in
the Philippines. We believe that the production of these products
could be redeployed to other regions if necessitated.

QOur primary sales offices outside of the United States are located in
Europe and the Far East. These offices, together with offices in
other locations worldwide, provide sales and technical support to
our customers across the globe. APC also owns or leases distribu-
tion centers in numerous countries worldwide, and utilizes third
party warehouses in Europe, the Far East, Canada, South Africa, and
Uruguay for distribution into our international markets.

Financial Information About Foreign and Domestic Cperations
The information required under this section is included in Note 11
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in ltem 8 of this
Report and is incorporated herein by reference.

Employees

As of December 31, 2001, APC had approximately 6,212 full-
time employees worldwide, approximately 1,834 of whom are
located in the United States and Canada. APC also engages
other personnel on a part-time basis.

APC's Executive Cfficers

APC's executive officers are elected annually and hold office until
the next Annual Meeting of the Board of Directors and until their
successors are duly elected and qualified. As of March 11, 2002,
APC's executive officers were:

T

Rodger B. Dowdell, Jr 52 Chairman of the Board of Directors,
President, and Chief Executive

Officer

Senior Vice President, Chief
Technical Officer and Director

Neil E. Resmussen 47

Edward W. Machela 47 Senior Vice President, Operations,

and Chief Qperations Officer

Donald R4, Muwir 45 Senior Vice President, Finance &

Administration, Treasurer and
Chief Financial Officer

Emanuel E. Landsman 65
Aaron L Davis 35

Vice President and Director

Vice President, Marketing and
Communications

Pster A. Rumsey 33 Vice President, Global Sales

Rodger B. Dowdell, Jr. has been President and a Director of APC
since August 1985 and Chairman of APC's Board of Directors since
June 1988. From January to August 1985, Mr. Dowdell worked

for APC as a consultant, developing a marketing and
production strategy for UPS products. From 1978 to December of
1984 he was President of Independent Energy, Inc., a manufacturer
of electronic temperature controls.

Neil E. Rasmussen became Senior Vice President in June 2001
and previously was Vice President since our inception. In 1997,
he was appointed Chief Technical Officer of APC and has been a
Director of APC since our inception. From 1979 to 1981, Mr.
Rasmussen worked in the Energy Systems Engineering Group at
Massachusetts Institute of Technology's Lincoln Laboratory.

Edward W. Machala was named Senior Vice President,
Operations, and Chief Operations Officer in June 2001. Mr.
Machala joined APC in January 1989 as Vice President,
Operations. From January 1985 to January 1989, Mr. Machala was
Director of Manufacturing and Engineering Technology for GTECH,
a manufacturer of electronic lottery and gaming terminals, where
he was responsible for manufacturing and engineering functions.

Donald M. Muir became Senior Vice President, Finance &
Administration and Treasurer in June 2001. Mr. Muir joined APC
in July 1995 as Chief Financial Officer. From July 1993 to July
1995, Mr. Muir was the Treasurer of Stratus Computer, Inc.
where he was responsible for managing investor relations, treas-
ury services, corporate taxation, and risk management. Prior to
his appointment as Treasurer at Stratus Computer, Inc., Mr. Muir
held the position of Director of Finance and Administration from
January 1991 to July 1993 and Controller, Worldwide Sales and
Service from Decermnber 1988 to January 1991.

Emanuel E. Landsman has been Vice President and a Director of
APC since our inception and served as Clerk from our inception
until June 2001. From 1966 to 1981, Dr. Landsman worked at
Massachusetts Institute of Technology’s Lincoln Laboratory, where
he was in the Space Communications Group from 1966 to 1977
and the Energy Systems Engineering Group from 1977 to 1981.

Aaron L. Davis was named Vice President, Marketing and
Communications in June 2001. Mr. Davis served as Vice
President, Small Systems Group from May 1999 to June 2001,
Vice President, Marketing and Communications from June
1997 to May 1999, and Vice President of Marketing
Communications from January 1995 to June 1997. Mr. Davis
joined APC as Director of Marketing Communications in May
1989. Mr. Dowdell is the uncle of Mr. Davis.

Peter A. Rumsey was named Vice President, Global Sales at APC
in June 2001. Mr. Rumsey served as APC’s Vice President,
Enterprise Solutions Group from May 1999 to June 2001. Mr.
Rumsey joined APC in 1990 as an OEM Account Manager and
has served in a variety of sales management roles including
Technical Sales Manager, Director of Strategic Partners, Country
Manager for Japan, Managing Director of Asia Pacific, and
General Manager of Asia Pacific. From 1991 to 1993 Mr. Rumsey
served in the U.S. Air Force.




ltem 2. Properties
APC's principal properties are located in the United States,
Brazil, China, Denmark, England, India, Ireland, the Philippines,
| and Switzerland. In addition, we own or lease sales offices and
other space at various locations throughout the United States
and outside the United States. APC also owns or leases such
machinery and equipment as are necessary in our operations.

In general, our properties are in good condition, are considered
to be adequate for the uses to which they are being put, and

are substantially in regular use.

T

| i Sales]
foeationfof Marlcetinglel
In squars feet
Owned
United States
Rhode Island 167,850 98,930 4,980 271,760 Shared
Maryland 12,170 80,980 26,280 119,430 Large Systems
Massachusetts 23,000 23,000 Shared
Europe
Ireland 66,400 208,100 103,900 378,400 Shared
Denmark 27,660 71,925 11,065 110,650 Large Systems
Far East
Philippines 21,410 178,840 64,280 264,530 Shared
% Leased
i United States
Rhade Island 47,210 182,830 9,540 304,940 544,520 Shared
Maryland 15,900 25,000 23,900 64,800 Small Systems
Missouri 31,670 3,500 26,960 62,130 Shared
; Massachusetts 52,300 52,300 Shared
; Texas 2,640 21,130 2,640 26,410 Large Systems
Europe
England 17,200 55,630 7,290 6,680 86,800 Large Systems
Switzerland 14,510 20,690 540 8,610 44 350 Large Systems
v Far East
India 16,165 75,895 7,240 99,300 Small Systems
China 27,315 38,945 29,990 86,250 Shared
i South America
: Brazil 34,750 82,925 48,620 164,295 Small Systems

ltem 3. Legal Proceedings

APC is involved in various claims and legal actions arising in
the ordinary course of business. We do not believe that the
ultimate disposition of these matters will have a material
adverse effect on APC’s consolidated financial position or

results of operaticns or liquidity.
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tem 5. Market for Registrant’s Commaon
Stock and Related Stockholder Matters

APC’s Common Stock is traded over-the-counter on The Nasdaq
Stock Market under the symbol APCC and on the Pacific
Exchange, Inc. under the symbol ACC. The following table sets
forth the range of high and low bid quotations on the Nasdag
Stock Market per share of Common Stock for the years 2001 and
2000. These quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail
mark up, mark down, or commission and may not necessarily
represent actual transactions.

gIe) [BI0URUL PRI0BJRS

On March 11, 2002, the closing sale price for APC's Common
Stock was $14.70 per share. As of March 11, 2002, there were
approximately 2,078 holders of record of APC’s Common Stock.
No cash dividends have been paid and it is anticipated that none
will be declared in the foreseeable future. We currently intend
to retain any earnings to finance the growth and development
of our business. Any future dividends will be at the discretion of
the Board of Directors and will depend upon, among other
things, the financial condition, capital requirements, earnings,
and liquidity of APC.

Itemn 8. Selected Financial Data

All amounts are in dollars except for outstanding shares. Dollars
are in thousands except for basic and diluted earnings per share.

1‘; 2001 : 2000 Shares are in thousands. APC did not declare any cash dividends
1 . N . for the five year period presented. Earnings per share and share
Hioh X
. o High Low data reflect a two for one stock split effected in 1999.
First Quarter S13850] S5 $44.88 $23.25 . .
; The results of operations of companies acquired in 2000 and 1998
Second Quarter | S F11.35 ‘ $45.00 $28.06 are included from their respective dates of acquisition. For more
Third Quarter | g3 N0 ‘\ $48.84 $18.50 {nformathn about these ac|qU|s!t|ons‘ .refer to the Acqg;sﬂron §ect|qn
! included in Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Fourth Quarter , SI5130 S ‘ $22.75 $9.50 Condition and Results of Operations in Item 7 of this Report.
B 2 2000 1989 1638 ey
Net sales ‘ [S1Rd3383 k $1,483,563 $1,344,931 $1,130,99 $876,292
Cost of goods sold 867,680 747,389 645,378 491,460
Gross profit “ BZA7 615,883 597,542 485,613 384,832
Operating expenses 4 B612560 406,410 318,317 281,144 213,394
\
Operating income ; NAa¥E53 209,473 279,225 204,469 171,438
Other income, net \ HBEY O] 23,838 13,292 11,687 6,354
I
Earnings before income taxes
and minority interest | 81553 233,311 292,517 216,156 177,792
| _
Income taxes i KENIBS) 67,660 86,293 68,231 56,004
Earnings before minority \
interest JHIEH365) 165,651 206,224 147,925 121,788
Minority interest, net B - — — 349 —
Netincome | ISINBI6Y $165,651 $206,224 $147,576 $121,788
Basic earnings per share \ 50858 $0.85 $1.07 $0.77 $0.64
Basic weighted average ’
shares outstanding | HG5SIlL 194,235 192,201 191,006 189,986
Diluted earnings per share w‘ 8088 $0.83 $1.05 $0.76 $0.63
T
Diluted weighted average !
shares outstanding | s 200,156 196,088 193576 192,242
il
Total assets : SIKA2.08/072 $1,317,105 $1,106,938 $871,983 $641,290
T
Short-term debt i — — — $12,540 —
Long-term debt J - — — — —




ltem 7. Mianagement's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations

Results of operalions

The following table sets forth our net sales, cost of goods sold,
gross profit, marketing, selling, general, and administrative
expenses, R&D expenses, operating income, other income,
earnings before income taxes, and net income, expressed as a
percentage of net sales, for the years ended December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999.

Cami [ 2000 1999

% Net sales % 100.0% 100.0%
w Cost of goods sold (62%4 58.5 55.6
| Gross profit 7@4}5‘@"7 #15 444
‘ Marketing, selling,
: general & administrative
| expenses 248 21.0 211

Special charges = 32 —
é Research & development 8B 32 28
! Qperating income wa 14.1 207
Other income, net £ 1.6 10
, Earnings before income
| taxes 7.0 15.7 2.7
i Netincome 79 1.2 15.3

Revenues

Net sales in fiscal year 2001 decreased by 3.4% to $1,433.3
million from $1,483.6 million in fiscal year 2000 which was
10.3% higher than $1,344.9 million in fiscal year 1999. Net
sales in 2001 and 2000 included sales attributable to 2000
acquisitions; also refer to Acqguisitions below. Our fiscal year
2001 net revenue continued to be impacted by softness in
IT and communications market segments with general (T
spending and growth in core technology applications, such as
PCs, down year over year. Our Small Systems business, which
provides power protection, uninterruptible power supply (UPS),
and management products for the PC, server, and local area
networking markets, was negatively impacted in fiscal years
2001 and 2000 by industry softness in the [T markets,
weakening global economies, and maturing markets. The rate
of growth in the Large Systems segment, consisting primarily
of UPS, DC-power systems, and precision cooling products for
data centers, facilities, and communication applications, was
negatively impacted in fiscal year 2001 by the significant reduc-
tion in corporate investment for these types of applications,
particularly in the second half of 2001. This negative impact
was partially offset by the inclusion of incremental revenue
activity for fiscal year 2001 attributable to the 2000 acquisitions
of Advance Power and NetworkAir, formerly Airflow Company,
which were acquired in the second and fourth quarters of 2000,
respectively. The Large Systems segment experienced healthy

growth in fiscal year 2000, driven by the build-out of data
centers and share gains in the 3-phase UPS market as well
as the 2000 acquisition of DC-power and precision cooling
products. APC experienced strong demand for its products
across all solution applications in 1999.

Despite decreased net sales in 2001, sales of new products
contributed to overall net sales in 2001. Sales of products introduced
during 2001, 2000 and 1999 represented approximately 18%, 12%,
and 7%, respectively, of net sales in those years.

Foreign sales to unaffiliated customers, primarily in Europe, the Far
East, Canada, and South America, in fiscal year 2001 were $676.3
million or 47.2% of net sales compared to $696.2 million or 46.9%
of net sales in fiscal year 2000 and $636.2 million or 47.3% of net
sales in fiscal year 1999. Also refer to Note 11 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in ltem 8 of this Report.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold was $920.9 million or 64.2% of net sales in
fiscal year 2001 compared to $867.7 million or 58.5% of net
sales in fiscal year 2000 and $747.4 million or 55.6% of net sales
in fiscal year 1999. Gross margins for fiscal year 2001 were
35.8% of net sales, approximately 570 basis points lower than in
fiscal year 2000; for fiscal year 2000, gross margins were 41.5%
of net sales, approximately 290 basis points lower than in fiscal
year 1999. The gross margin erosions were associated with
product mix shifts to lower margin products, principally the con-
tinued growth of our lower gross margin Large System segment,
the effect of pro-active consumer product price cuts in 2001 and
2000, and manufacturing inefficiencies from continued global
capacity expansion prior to our capacity rationalization efforts
during the second half of 2001.

Additionally, 2001 gross margins included the effects of third
quarter charges for excess inventory of $12.4 million and
restructuring costs of $4.1 million, principally associated with
the Large Systems segment. These charges were the result of
events or assessments that occurred during the third quarter of
2001. The charge for excess inventory related to specifically
identified finished goods and raw materials inventories. There
were no additional inventory charges, other than APC’s standard
provisioning, during the fourth guarter of 2001. Approximately
$6.0 million of inventories included in the third quarter charge
were physically disposed during the fourth quarter. Disposition
of the remaining inventories has continued into early 2002; we
anticipate that all excess inventory will be physically disposed
by no fater than the end of the first half of 2002. The restructur-
ing costs were associated with manufacturing downsizing
actions in Denmark and the U.K. and included the effects of
employee terminations, facilities closures, and the related
impairment of tangible and intangible assets. These actions
were announced and substantially completed in the third
quarter of 2001. We anticipate the final settiements of our
restructuring actions to be completed by no later than the end
of the first half of 2002. We expect to generate significant
employment cost savings as a result of our restructuring
actions. Due to the timing of the facilities closures and contrac-
tual or regulatory obligations to certain workers, the financial
benefits of these actions did not commence until the fourth
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quarter of 2001 and will continue to phase in gradually during
the first half of 2002. Also refer to Note 3 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Report.

Total inventory reserves at December 31, 2001 were $32.9
million compared to $20.5 million at December 31, 2000Q. This
increase was due primarily to the aforementioned charge for
excess inventory as well as routine provisioning throughout the
year. APC's reserve estimate methodology involves quantifying
the total inventory position having potential loss exposure. Loss
exposure generally results from several business factors,
including product or component discontinuance, unplanned
changes in demand, product design changes, and factory transi-
tions. Quantifying such loss exposure is the result of combining
the cost of inventories specifically identified as having little or no
opportunity for sale or use (thus available for physical disposi-
tion) plus the cost of inventories having a high risk of no future
sale or use based upon an analysis of on-hand quantities
compared to historical and anticipated future sale or use.
APC maintains an on-going business process for the physical
disposition of inventories previously identified. Inventory write-
offs occur at the time of physical disposition. Inventories, once
reserved, are not written back up as such reserve adjustments
are considered 1o be a permanent decrease o the cost basis of
the excess or obsolete inventory.

Segment Results {Also refer to Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Report for important information
regarding APC’s reportable segments)

While we experienced increased unit volumes during fiscal 2001,
net sales for products in the Small Systems segment, which
provides power protection, UPS, and management products for
the PC, server, and local area networking markets, decreased in
fiscal year 2001 by 7.1% from the prior year, while Small Systems
net sales increased in fiscal year 2000 by 2.3% over the prior
year. The overall decrease in 2001 and the decline in the rate of
growth during 2000 were impacted by industry softness in the IT
markets, weakening global economies, and maturing markets.
Profits for the Small Systems segment declined in 2001 from
comparable levels in 2000 as a result of pro-active price reduc-
tions in 2001 combined with a mix shift within the segment
toward lower margin products. Profits for this segment remained
relatively stable during 2000 as a percentage of net sales in spite
of declining sales growth and-pro-active price reductions during
2000, principally due to transitioning the manufacture of certain
products to lower cost facilities.

Net sales for products in the Large Systems segment, consisting
primarily of UPS, DC-power systems, and precision cooling prod-
ucts for data centers, facilities, and communication applications,
increased 9.3% and 92.0% over the prior years in 2001 and 2000,
respectively. The rate of growth during fiscal year 2001 was nega-
tively impacted by the significant reduction in corporate investment
for these types of applications, particularly in the second half of
2001. The Large Systems segment experienced healthy growth in
fiscal year 2000 driven by the build-out of data centers and share
gains in the 3-phase UPS market with our Silcon products, as well
as the 2000 acquisition of DC-power and precision cooling products.
Profits for this segment have declined due to cost inefficiencies
resulting from continued global capacity expansion, coupled with

‘declining sales volumes, particularly in the second half of 2001.

Additionally, profits were negatively impacted by continued invest-
ment in product and business development initiatives for this
business segment in fiscal year 2001, as well as the restructuring
costs discussed above associated with manufacturing downsizing
actions in Denmark and the U.K. which included the effects
of employee terminations, facilities closures, and the related
impairment of tangible and intangible assets.

Operating Expenses

Marketing, selling, general, and administrative (SG&A) expenses
were $312.9 million or 21.8% of net sales in fiscal year 2001
compared to $311.6 million or 21.0% of net sales in fiscal year
2000 and $283.7 million or 21.1% of net sales in fiscal year 1999.
Total spending in 2001 approximated levels in 2000 due to
focused efforts to control expenses while improving the produc-
tivity and efficiency of our global resources. 2001 spending rose
due to increased investment in sales personnel and distribution
costs as well as increased investment in IT support. These
increases were substantially offset by reduced spending on
administrative support. The increase in total spending in 2000
was due primarily to continued investments in building our sales
capabilities, including a global relational sales organization.

During the third and second guarters of 2000, we agreed to license
worldwide patent rights relating to uninterruptible power supply
technology for lump-sum cash payments of $17.0 million and $48.0
million, respectively. These license fees were paid from operating
cash during the third and second guarters of 2000. APC evaluated
the portion of the license fees that represented payment for prior
use of the subject technology and the portion that represented
payment for future use. Considering each of our markets and the
historical and projected revenue realized in markets utilizing the
licensed technology, we estimated the present value of royalty
payments, basing this calculation on an appropriate royalty rate and
the technology’s contribution to the overall value of affected prod-
ucts. Separate present values were calculated for both historic and
projected product sales; the historic values were expensed and the
projected values were capitalized. Accordingly, write-offs of the fully
paid-up portions of the patent licenses were recognized in our con-
solidated statements of income for the third and second quarters
of 2000 as special charges to pre-tax earnings of $17.5 million and
$30.4 million, respectively, including direct expenses of $1.5 million
and $1.9 million, respectively. The remaining balances of $1.0 mil-
lion and $19.5 million have been classified on the consolidated
balance sheet as long term assets and are being amortized on a
straight-line basis over three years and nine years, respactively, the
estimated remaining economic lives of the patent licenses.

The allowance for bad debts was 6.6% of gross accounts
receivable at December 31, 2001 compared to 6.3% at
December 31, 2000. Accounts receivable balances outstanding
over 60 days represented 18.2% of total receivables at
December 31, 2001 compared to 13.4% at December 31, 2000.
This increase reflects in part a growing portion of our business
originating in areas where longer payment terms are customary,
including a growing contribution from international markets, as
well as the product mix shift towards Large Systems business,
which typically carries longer sales cycles and collection cycles.
In addition, we have experienced slower payment cycles as a




result of what we believe is tighter fiscal management by our
customers during the recent macro economic downturn. We
continue to experience strong collection performance. Write-
offs of uncollectable accounts represent less than 1% of net
sales. A majority of international customer balances are covered
by receivables insurance.

R&D expenditures were $54.6 million or 3.8% of net sales in fiscal
year 2001, $46.9 million or 3.2% of net sales in fiscal year 2000, and
$34.6 million or 2.6% of net sales in fiscal year 1999. The increases
in total R&D spending primarily reflects increased numbers of
software and hardware engineers and other costs associated with
new product development and engineering support, combined with
incremental costs attributable to Advance Power and NetworkAir,
formerly Airflow Company, which were acquired in the second and
fourth quarters of 2000, respectively.

Other Income, Net and Income Taxes

Other income is comprised principally of interest income
combined with a $1.3 million gain in fiscal year 2001 on the sale
of a building in Billerica, Massachusetts. Although interest income
increased substantially from 1999 to 2000 due to higher average
cash balances available for investment during 2000, interest
income decreased substantially from 2000 to 2001 due to lower
short term interest rates during 2001.

Our effective income tax rates were approximately 28.5%,
29.0%, and 29.5%, in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The
decrease from 1999 to 2001 is due to the tax savings from an
increasing portion of taxable earnings being generated from
APC's operations in jurisdictions currently having lower income
tax rates than the present U.S. statutory income tax rate.

Eftects of Inflation
Management believes that inflation has not had a material effect
on APC’s operations.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Working capital at December 31, 2001 was $884.4 million com-
pared to $744.8 million at December 31, 2000. APC has been able
to increase its working capital position as the result of continued
positive operating results and despite internally financing the
capital investment required to expand its operations. Our cash,
cash equivalents, and short-term investments position increased
to $393.1 million at December 31, 2001 from $308.0 million at
December 31, 2000.

Worldwide inventories were $350.6 million at December 31,
2001, up from $289.0 million at December 31, 2000. Like many
other vendors participating in the communications and Internet
infrastructure build-out, APC has been impacted by the rapid
decline in forecasted demandsAduring 2001 and late 2000. APC
has also experienced shipment cancellations and rescheduled
sales orders from customers in the telecommunications and
service provider industry, while our global capacity expansion
and rebalancing in our Large Systems business drove the need
for additional safety stock. Additionally, APC’s third quarter 2001
results include the effects of a charge for excess inventory that
totaled $12.4 million relating to specifically identified finished
goods and materials inventories. The inventories subject to the
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write-off are categorized as follows: $1.5 million of residual,
unusable quantities located at facilities impacted by recent
downsizing actions; $2.5 million of unusable or unsaleable quan-
tities related to declining and changing demand requirements;
and $8.4 million of custom finished goods impacted by canceled
sales orders, primarily from customers in the telecom and
Internet infrastructure industries. There were no additional
inventory charges, other than APC’s standard provisioning,
during the fourth quarter of 2001. Approximately $6.0 million of
inventories included in the third quarter charge were physically
disposed during the fourth quarter. Disposition of the remaining
inventories has continued into early 2002 and we anticipate
that all excess inventory will be physically disposed by no later
than the end of the first half of 2002. Inventory levels as a
percentage of quarterly sales were 101% in the fourth quarter
of 2001, unchanged from 101% in the third quarter of 2001 and
up from 71% in the fourth quarter of 2000.

At December 31, 2001, we had $65.0 million available for future
borrowings under an unsecured line of credit agreement at a
floating interest rate equal to the bank's cost of funds rate plus
625% and an additional $7.0 million under unsecured line of
credit agreements with a second and third bank at similar interest
rates. No borrowings were outstanding under these facilities
at December 31, 2001. APC had no significant financial commit-
ments, other than those required in the normal course of business,
at December 31, 2001.

APC has several non-cancelable operating leases, primarily for
warehousing and office space, expiring at various dates through
2010. These leases contain renewal options for periods ranging
from one to nine years and require APC to pay its proportionate
share of utilities, taxes, and insurance. Future minimum lease
payments under these non-cancelable leases are: 2002 — $7.2
million; 2003 — $5.4 million; 2004 - $4.3 million; 2005 — $3.1
million; 2006 - $1.7 million; and $5.8 million thereafter,

During 2001 and 2000, our capital expenditures, net of capital
grants, amounted to approximately $47.9 million and $73.7 million,
respectively, consisting primarily of manufacturing and office
equipment, buildings and improvements, and purchased software
applications. The nature and level of capital spending was made to
improve manufacturing capabilities, principally in Brazil and India,
as well as to fund |T-related capital equipment and software
purchases to support business process improvement initiatives.
Capital spending included Large Systems segment global capacity
expansion into lower cost locations closer to local end-user
customers and markets. Substantially all of APC's net capital
expenditures were financed from available operating cash. We had
no material capital commitments at December 31, 2001.

APC has agreements with the Industrial Development Autharity
of Ireland, otherwise known as the IDA. Under these agreements,
we receive grant monies for costs incurred for machinery, equip-
ment, and building improvements for cur Galway and Castlebar
facilities. These grants are equal to 40% and 60%, respectively, of
such costs up to a maximum of $13.1 million for Galway and $1.3
million for Castlebar. Such grant monies are subject to APC meet-
ing certain employment goals and maintaining operations
in Ireland until termination of the respective agreements. Under
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separate agreements with the IDA, we receive direct reimburse-
ment of training costs at our Galway and Castlebar facilities for up
to $3,000 and $12,600, respectively, per new employee hired.
Also refer to Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements in Item 8 of this Report.

During the first quarter of 2002, we announced global
headcount reductions of approximately 17%. These actions
impact personnel worldwide throughout a broad range of
functions within the organization. The majority of these termi-
nations are the result of our recent decision to consolidate
APC’s Philippines-based manufacturing operations resulting in
the closing of APC's manufacturing facility in the province of
Laguna. These actions have been and are being implemented
during the first half of 2002. We anticipate annualized employ-
ment cost savings of approximately $10 million.

We believe that current internal cash flows together with available
cash, available credit facilities or, if needed, the proceeds from the
sale of additional equity, will be sufficient to support anticipated
capital spending and other working capital requirements for the
foreseeable future.

Acquisitions

Airflow

In the fourth quarter of 2000, we acquired privately-held Airflow
Company, a Maryland-based manufacturer of precision cooling
equipment primarily used in data center, Internet, and telecom-
munications applications. For Airflow Company we paid $22.5 mil-
lion in cash plus expenses, of which $4.0 million will be paid at
scheduled dates over three years in the event no indemnity claims
arise. Our cash outlays associated with the acquisition were
financed from operating cash. At December 31, 2001 and 2000,
the excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair value of
the tangible net assets acquired has been included in goodwill and
is being amortized on a straight-line basis over 15 years. The acqui-
sition has been accounted for as a purchase and, accordingly,
Airflow’s results of operations are included in our consclidated
financial statements from the date of acquisition.

Advance Power

Early in the second guarter of 2000, we acquired privately-held
Advance Power Ltd., a U.K.-based manufacturer of DC-power sys-
tems used in communications and Internet applications, for $75.0
million in cash plus expenses. Qur cash outlays associated with
the acquisition were financed from operating cash. At December
31, 2001 and 2000, the excess of the purchase price over the
estimated fair value of the tangible net assets and identifiable
intangible assets acquired has been included in goodwill and is
being amortized on a straight-line basis over 15 years. The acqui-
sition has been accounted for as a purchase and, accordingly,
Advance Power’s resuits of operations are included in our consol-
idated financial statements from the date of acquisition.

ABL Electronics Corporation

Early in the second quarter of 2000, we acquired privately-held
ABL Electronics Corporation, a North American provider of com-
puter and network cables, switches, and other connectivity prod-
ucts, for $8.0 million paid in a combination of cash and stock,

plus expenses. Our cash outlays associated with the acquisition
were financed from operating cash. At December 31, 2001 and
2000, the excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair
value of the tangible net assets acquired has been included in
goodwill and is being amortized on a straight-line basis over 15
years. The acquisition has been accounted for as a purchase and,
accordingly, ABL's results of operations are included in our con-
solidated financial statements from the date of acquisition.

Select Assets of ARRIS Group, Inc.

In the fourth quarter of 2001, we acquired select inventory and
related technology associated with outside plant, networking
power product lines from ARRIS Group Inc. for $10.3 million paid in
cash. The product lines were acquired from ARRIS Energylink™
family of power supplies, enclosures and equipment for network
broadband power, including the TSP™ (Total System Power) line.
The products lines are designed for outdoor use, commonly
installed on utility poles or adjacent to fiber nodes, and provide
back-up power for broadband cable applications. Our cash outlays
associated with this purchase were financed from operating cash.

Foreign Currency Activity

We invoice our customers in various currencies. Realized and
unrealized transaction gains or losses are included in the results of
operations and are measured based upon the effect of changes in
exchange rates on the actual or expected amount of functional
currency cash flows. Transaction gains and losses were not mate-
rial to the results of operations in 2001, 2000 and 1999.

At December 31, 2001, APC's unhedged foreign currency accounts
receivable, by currency, were as follows:

in thousands Foreign Currency U8 Doffars |
European Euros 54,878 $48,468
Japanese Yen 2,799,746 $21,264
Swiss Francs 25,591 $15,234
British Pounds 8,983 $13,051

APC also had non-trade receivables denominated in Irish Pounds of
approximately U.S. $1.5 million, liabilities denominated in various
European currencies of approximately U.S.$41.8 million, and liabili-
ties denominated in Japanese Yen of approximately U.S.$7.1 million.

We continually review our foreign exchange exposure and consid-
er various risk management techniques, including the netting of
foreign currency receipts and disbursements, rate protection agree-
ments with customersf/vendors and derivatives arrangements,
including foreign exchange contracts. We presently do not utilize
rate protection agreements or derivative arrangerents.

Critical Accounting Policies

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of
operations are based upon our consolidated financial statements,
which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these
financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.




The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission has defined critical
accounting policies as those that are both most important to the
portrayal of our financial condition and results and which require our
most difficult, complex or subjective judgments or estimates. Based
on this definition, we have identified the policies below as critical to
our business operations and the understanding of our results of oper-
ations. The impact and any associated risks related to these policies
on our business operations is discussed throughout Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations where such policies affect our reported and expected
financial results. For all financial statement periods presented, there
have been no material modifications to the application of these criti-
cal accounting policies. For a detziled discussion on the application of
these and other accounting policies, also refer to Note 1 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in ltem 8 of this Report.

On an on-going basis, we evaluate the judgments and estimates
underlying all of our accounting policies, including those related to
revenue recognition, product returns, bad debts, inventories,
impairment of long-lived assets, deferred tax valuation allowances,
restructuring reserves and contingencies, and litigation. We base
our estimates on historical experience and on various other
assumptions that are helieved to be reasonable under the circum-
stances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Materially different results in
the amount and timing of our actual results for any period could
occur if we made different judgments or utilized different
estimates. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Our critical accounting policies are as follows:

Revenue Recognition

We follow very specific and detailed guidelines in measuring
revenue; however, certain judgments affect the application of our
revenue policy. Revenue results are difficult to predict, and any
shortfall in revenue or delay in recognizing revenue could cause our
operating results to vary significantly from quarter to quarter. In
general, revenue is recognized when title has passed at the time of
delivery of product for all of our operating segments as stipulated
by the delivery terms for the sales transactions. In addition, prior to
revenue recognition, we require persuasive evidence of the
arrangement, that the price is fixed or determinable, and that
collectibility is reasonably assured. Installation is not applicable for
Small Systems and Other segment products based on the nature
of the products sold. Generally, revenue associated with Large
Systems sales is also recognized at the time of delivery pursuant to
the delivery terms, as we do not perform instaliation. Delivery
terms vary, but often include origin-based terms (e.g., FOB
Shipping Point and Ex-works) and destination-based terms (e.g.,
DDU/DDP (delivered duty unpaid/delivered duty paid)).

Certain Large Systems product lines and, at times, one product
line included in the Small Systems segment require electrical
hardwire installation or duct installation which is performed by
the customer or their contracted licensed contractor/electrician.
Since we do not perform the installation, revenue recognition at
the time of delivery is proper as customer acceptance of the unit
is not required. Also, payment by the customer is not contingent
upon installation of the product.

We offer additional services to customers depending on the type
of product the customer has purchased, including on-site services,
installation consuiting services, remote monitoring services,
power audit services, and network integration services. Revenue
is recognized at the time services are provided or is deferred and
recognized over the service period (where applicable). The fair
value of these services are based upon the rates that we charge
customers in separately negotiated transactions and such services
are not essential to the functionality of the delivered product.

For all sales, except those completed over the Internet, we use a
binding purchase order as evidence of an arrangement. For sales
over the Internet, we use a credit card authorization as evidence of
an arrangement. Sales through certain customers are evidenced by
a master agreement governing the relationship together with bind-
ing purchase orders on a transaction by transaction basis.

Our arrangements do not generally include acceptance clauses.
However, if an arrangement includes a customer specified accept-
ance provision, acceptance generally occurs at our factory prior to
delivery. As we introduce new products in 2002, particularly
PowerStruXure, we anticipate that installation and customer
acceptance provisions will become more common, and therefore
increasingly significant for determining delivery and performance
and consequently our entitlement to recognize revenue.

Estimating Valuation Aflowances and Accrued Liabilities — Allowances
for Sales Returns, Doubtful Accounts, and Inventory Obsolescence, and
Assessment of the Probability of the Qutcome of our Current Litigation
Significant management judgments that affect the application of our
revenue policy also include estimates of potential future product
returns related to current period product revenue. We analyze histori-
cal returns, current economic trends, and channel inventories when
evaluating the adequacy of the sales returns and other allowances.
Significant management judgments and estimates must be made and
used in connection with establishing the sales returns and other
allowances in any accounting period. Material differences may result
in the amount and timing of our revenue for any period if management
made different judgments or utilized different estimates.

We provide limited rights of return to distributors and retailers
for our Small Systems product lines. We provide appropriate
reserves for returns at the time that related revenue is recognized
based on historical patterns of returns and contractual provisions in
accordance with the provisions of SFAS 48 and SAB 101. Returns
of Large Systems products generally do not occur. Historically,
returns have represented 3% of gross sales and have not differed
significantly from prior estimates.

Similarly, we must make estimates of the uncollectability of our
accounts receivables. Management specifically analyzes accounts
receivable balances in view of customer credit-worthiness,
customer concentrations, historical bad debts, current economic
trends, and changes in our customer payment terms when
evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts. A
majority of international customer balances are covered by receiv-
ables insurance. Our accounts receivable balance was $263.6
million, net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $18.7 million
as of December 31, 2001.
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Qur inventory reserve estimate methodology involves quantifying
the total inventory position having potential loss exposure. Loss
exposure generally results from several business factors, including
product or component discontinuance, unplanned changes in
demand, product design changes, and factory transitions.
Quantifying such loss exposure is the result of combining the cost
of inventories specifically identified as having little or no opportuni-
ty for sale or use (thus available for physical disposition) plus the
cost of inventories having a high risk of no future sale or use based
upon an analysis of on-hand quantities compared to historical and
anticipated future sale or use. We maintain an on-going business
process for the physical disposition of inventories previously iden-
tified. Inventory write-offs occur at the time of physical disposition.
Inventories, once reserved, are not written back up as such
reserve adjustments are considered to be a permanent decrease
to the cost basis of the excess or obsolete inventory. If actual
market conditions are less favorable than those projected by
management, additional inventory write-downs may be required.

We are, and may in the future become, involved in litigation involv-
ing our business, products or operations. For pending claims for
which there is an estimatable range of loss greater than zero, we
record the best estimate of liability within the range. If no point
within the range is considered the best estimate, we record the
minimum estimated liability. Because of uncertainties related to the
identifiable range of loss on any pending claims, we may be unable
to make a reasonable estimate of the liability that could result
from an unfavorable outcome. As additional information becomes
available, we assess the potential liability related to our pending
claims and revise our estimates. Such revisions in our estimates of
the potential liability could materially impact our results of operation
and financial position. The litigation process is uncertain and
includes the risk of an unexpected, unfavorable result. We may be
materially adversely impacted by any such litigation.

Valuation of Long-lived Tangible and Intangible

Assets Including Goodwill

We assess the impairment of long-lived tangible and intangible
assets including goodwiill on an ongoing basis and whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
not be recoverable. Should our assessment suggest impairment,
we would determine recoverability based on an estimate of future
undiscounted cash flows resulting from our use of the asset and its
eventual disposition. Factors we consider that could trigger an
impairment review include the following:

o significant underperformance relative to expected
historical or projected future operating results;

o significant changes in the manner of our use of the
acquired assets or the strategy for our overall business;
e significant negative industry or economic trends; and

o significant technological changes, which would render
equipment and manufacturing process, obsolete.

Accounting for Income Taxes

As part of the process of preparing our consolidated financial state-
ments, we are required to estimate our income taxes in each of the
jurisdictions in which we operate. This process involves estimating
our actual current tax exposure together with assessing temporary
differences resulting from differing treatment of items, such
as deferred revenue, for tax and accounting purposes. These differ-

ences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are included
within our consolidated balance sheet. We must then assess the
likelihood that our deferred tax assets will be recovered from future
taxable income. Expectations about future taxable income incorpo-
rate numerous assumptions about actions, elections and strategies
1o minimize income taxes in future years. Our ability to take such
actions, make preferred elections and implement tax-planning strate-
gies may be adversely impacted by enacted changes in tax laws
and/or tax rates, as well as successful challenges by tax authorities
resulting from differing interpretations of tax laws and regulations.

To the extent we believe that recovery of deferred tax assets is not
likely, we must establish a valuation allowance. To the extent we
establisn a valuation allowance or increase this allowance in a
period, we must include an expense within the tax provision in the
consolidated statements of income. Significant management
judgment is required in determining our provision for income taxes,
our deferred tax assets and liabilities and any valuation allowance
recorded against our net deferred tax assets. We have recorded a
valuation allowance of $1.7 million as of December 31, 2001, due to
uncertainties related to our ability to utilize some of our deferred tax
assets, primarily consisting of net operating losses generated in
2001 for the start up of Brazilian operations, before they expire. The
valuation allowance is based on our estimates of taxable income by
jurisdiction in which we operate and the period over which our
deferred tax assets will be recoverable. In the event that actual
results differ from these estimates or we adjust these estimates in
future periods we may need to establish an additional valuation
allowance which could materially impact our financial position and
results of operations. The net deferred tax asset as of December 31,
2001 was $38.9 million, net of a valuation allowance of $1.7 million.

Recently lssued Accounting Standards

in October 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, which addresses
financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of
long-ived assets. We adopted this Statement on January 1, 2002. The
adoption of this Statement is not expected to have a material impact
on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143, Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations, which addresses financial accounting
and reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of tangible
longived assets and the associated asset retirement costs. This
Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002;
we will adopt this Statement on January 1, 2003. The adoption of this
Statement is not expected to have a material impact on our consoli-
dated financial position or results of operations.

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board finalized
Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, Business
Combinations, and No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.
Statement 141 requires the use of the purchase method of
accounting for business combinations initiated after June 30,
2001. Statement 141 also specifies the criteria that intangible
assets acquired in a purchase method business combination must
meet in order to be recognized and reported apart from goodwill.
We adopted certain provisions of Statement 141 on July 1, 2001.




Statement 142 requires that companies no longer amortize good-
will, but instead test goodwill impairment at least annually {or more
frequently if impairment indicators arise). Statement 142 is required
to be applied in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001 to
all goodwill and other intangible assets recognized at that date,
regardless of when those assets were initially recognized.
Statement 142 requires us to complete a transitional goodwill
impairment test six months from the date of adoption. We are also
required to reassess the useful lives of other intangible assets
within the first interim quarter after adoption of Statement 142. We
adopted Statement 142 on January 1, 2002. As of December 31,
20071 we had goodwill of $64.5 million less accumulated amortiza-
tion of $8.1 million with amortization expense of approximately $3.3
million in 2001. We expect a reduction of approximately $3.3 million
in goodwill amortization included in operating expenses in 2002 as
the result of the adoption of Statement 142. We are currently
evaluating the impact of the adoption of Statement 142 and the
required transitional goodwill impairment test.

In April 2001, the EITF reached a consensus on Issue No. 00-25,
*Vendor Income Statement Characterization of Consideration Paid to
a Reseller of the Vendor's Products." This issue addresses the
income statement classification of slotting fees, cooperative adver-
tising arrangements and buydowns. The consensus requires certain
customer promotional payments currently classified as marketing
expenses to be re-classified as a reduction of revenue. We adopted
EITF 00-25 on January 1, 2002. Our adoption of EITF
00-25 will result in a reclassification for the 2001, 2000 and 1999
consolidated income statements to reduce net sales and also
reduce marketing, selling, general and administrative expenses by
approximately $25.2 million, $11.3 million, and $12.5 million,
respectively. The adoption of EITF 00-25 will have no impact on
profit from operations, net income or earnings per share.

In April 2001, the EITF revised the transition requirements of its May
2000 consensus on Issue No. 00-14, " Accounting for Certain Sales
Incentives.” This issue involves the accounting for and reporting of
sales subject to rebates and revenue sharing arrangements as well as
coupons and discounts, including the income statement classification
of rebates and other discounts. We adopted EITF 00-14 on January 1,
2002. Our adoption of EITF 00-14 will result in a reclassification for
the 2001, 2000 and 1999 consolidated income statements to reduce
net sales and also reduce marketing, selling, general and administra-
tive expenses by approximately $5.4 mitlion, $1.9 million, and $0.7
million, respectively. The adoption of EITF 00-14 will have no impact
on profit from operations, net income or earnings per share.

Factors That May Affect Future Results

This document contains forward-looking statements that involve
risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially
from those anticipated in these forward looking statements as a
result of certain factors, including the risks faced by us described
below and elsewhere in this document.

Our annual and quarterly results are likely to be volatile
Qur annual and quarterly operating results may fluctuate as a result
of a number of factors, including:

e the growth rates in the UPS industry and related industries,
including but not limited to the PC, server, networking,
telecommunications and enterprise hardware industries;

e timing of orders from, and shipments to, customers;

° timing of new product introductions and the market
acceptance of those products;

e increased competition;

¢ our ability to execute our planned job reductions
and realize anticipated cost savings;

e changes in manufacturing costs;

e changes in the mix of product sales;

e inventory risks due to shifts in market demand;

° component constraints and shortages;

s risks of nonpayment of accounts receivable;

e expansion of manufacturing capacity;

e factors associated with international operations;

e acts of terrorism, war and political instability; and

e volatility in world economic conditions.

We currently compete with several firms providing power protection

and related products and services and expect competition to increase in
the future, which could affect our revenue and profitability.

We believe that we are one of less than ten global companies pro-
viding a full rarige of UPS products and services worldwide. The UPS,
power protection and related industries, however, are highly compet-
itive on both a worldwide basis and a regional geographic basis. We
compete, and will continue to compete, with several U.S. and foreign
firms, both on a worldwide basis and in various geographical regions,
and within individual product and application niches. We expect
competition to increase in the future from existing competitors and a
number of companies that may enter our existing or future markets.
Increased competition could adversely affect our revenue and
profitability through price reductions and loss of market share. The
principal competitive factors in our products include:

e product performance and quality;

e marketing and access to distribution channels;
¢ customer services; and

e product design and price.

Some of our current and potential competitors may have substan-
tially greater financial, technical, sales and marketing resources than
we have. We may not be able to continue to compete successfully
with our existing competitors or with new competitors.
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Failure to alter our products to meet the demands of technological
innovation could seriously harm our business.

The market for our products is characterized by rapidly changing
technology, evolving industry standards and frequent new product
introductions. Current competitors or new market entrants may
develop new products with features that could adversely affect the
competitive position of our products. We may not be successful in
selecting, developing, manufacturing and marketing new products or
enhancing our existing products or in responding effectively to
technological changes, new standards or product announcements by
competitors. The timely availability of new products and enhance-
ments, and their acceptance by customers are important to our
future success. Delays in such availability or a lack of market accept-
ance could have an adverse effect on our business.

Defects in our products could serigusly harm our business.

Our products may have defects despite testing internally or by cur-
rent or potential customers. These defects could result in loss or
delay in market acceptance, which could have a material adverse
effect upon our business, operating results, or financial condition.

Loss of any of our key personnel could seriously harm our business.
Our success depends to a significant degree upon the continuing con-
tributions of key management, sales, marketing, research and devel-
opment and manufacturing personnel, many of whom we would have
difficulty replacing. We believe that our future success will depend in
large part upon our ability to attract and retain highly-skilled hardware
and software engineers, and management, sales, and marketing per-
sonnel. Competition for such personnel is intense, and we may not
be successful in attracting and retaining such personnel. Failure to
attract and retain key personnel could have a material adverse effect
on our business, operating results, or financial condition.

Because we depend on foreign operations and revenues, we are
exposed to currency fluctuations, import barriers and other risks relat-
ed to conducting foreign operations.

We manufacture and market our products worldwide through sev-
eral foreign subsidiaries, distributors, and resellers. Our worldwide
operations are subject to the risks normally associated with foreign
operations including, but not limited to:

o customer and vendor financial instability;

o volatility in world economic conditions;

o the disruption of markets;

o changes in export or import laws;

° restrictions on currency exchanges;

o potentially negative tax consequences;

o longer payment terms;

o acts of war, terrorism and political instability; and

o the modification or introduction of government policies
with potentially adverse effects.

International sales, which are both direct and indirect sales to
customers outside the U.S., accounted for approximately 47.2%,
46.9%, and 47.3% of our net sales in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respec-
tively. We anticipate that international sales will continue to account
for a significant portion of our revenue. We invoice our customers in
various currencies. To date, we do not use any rate protection
agreements or derivative agreements to hedge any foreign
exchange exposure. Accordingly, we may be exposed to exchange

losses based upon currency exchange rate fluctuations, which loss-
es could have a materially adverse effect on our operating results.

A significant portion of products in our Small Systems and Large
Systems reportable operating segments are manufactured in foreign
locations, particularly developing countries such as Brazil, China, India,
and the Philippines, which subject APC to a number of economic and
other risks. The Small Systems have particular exposure to the
Philippines, a country which is experiencing political and financial
instability. Disruption of manufacturing efforts in these international
facilities could materially adversely impact our ability to fulfill custormer
orders and potentially result in the loss of business.

Because our business relies upon a variety of computer systems to
operate effectively, the failure or disruption of these systems could
have a material adverse effect on our business.

APC is a highly automated company whose efficient and effective
operation relies on a variety of information systems, including
e-mail, enterprise resource planning, electronic data interchange,
customer resource management and E-commerce systems.
Disruption in the operation of these systems, or difficulties in main-
taining or upgrading these systems, could have an adverse effect
on our business. In January 2001, we upgraded our enterprise
resource planning system. Difficulties that we have encountered,
or may encounter, in connection with our implementation and use
of this upgraded enterprise resource planning system could
adversely affect our order management and fulfillment, financial
reporting and supply chain management processes, and any such
difficulties could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Our reliance on sole source suppliers may result in product delays

or price increases.

We currently obtain certain components of our products and
certain finished products from sole sources. In the future, our
suppliers may not be able to meet our demand for components
and products in a timely and cost-effective manner. Our inability
to secure and qualify alternative sources of supply in a timely
manner may disrupt our ability to fulfill customer orders. We gen-
erally purchase these sole source components and products
using purchase orders and have no guaranteed supply
arrangements with the suppliers. In addition, the availability of
many of these components and products is dependent in part on
our ability to provide the suppliers with accurate forecasts of our
future requirements. However, our operating results and
customer relationships could be materially adversely affected by
either an increase in prices for, or an interruption or reduction
in supply of, any key components and products.

We have a limited ability to protect our intellectual property rights

and others could infringe on or misappropriate our propriety rights

and information.

Our success will depend, to a large extent, on our ability to protect our
proprietary technology. We rely on a combination of contractual rights,
trade secrets, patents, and copyrights to protect our proprietary rights.
Although we own certain patents, and we have applied, and in the
future we may apply, for patents, our intellectual property protection
may not be sufficient to prevent competitors from developing similar
technology. Moreover, in the absence of patent protection, our busi-
ness may be adversely affected by competitors which independently
develop functionally equivalent technology.




Our products may infringe on the intellectual property rights of others.
We attempt to ensure that our products and processes do not
infringe upon third party patents and other proprietary rights, but from
time to-time third parties have alleged, and in the future may allege,
such infringement. If third parties allege or determine infringement,
we may not prevail in such a challenge. Furthermore, if infringement
is determined, we may not be able to obtain the necessary licenses
on acceptable terms, if at all.

if we are unable to identify and successfully integrate acquisitions, our
ability to expand and our financial resuits could suffer,

We have limited experience in integrating acquired companies or
technologies into our operations. We may from time to time pursue
the acquisition of other companies, assets, products or technologies.
We may not be able to integrate successfully products, technologies,
distribution channels, key personnel and businesses of acquired
companies into our business or product offerings. In addition, the
integration of acquired companies may adversely affect our business,
operating results, or financial condition. Further, these acquired
companies, assets, products or technologies may not contribute
significantly to our sales or earnings, and the sales and earnings from
acquired businesses may be adversely affected by the integration
process or other factors. If we are not successful in the integration of
such acquired businesses, our financial results could be adversely
impacted. In addition, we may not be able to identify and consum-
mate suitable acquisition transactions in the future.

Our stock price could be volatile, which could cause you to lose part
or all of your investment.

The market price of our common stock has been, and may continue
to be, extremely volatile. The trading price of our common stock
could be subject to wide fluctuations in response to:

¢ quarter-to-quarter variations in operating results;
e changes in earnings estimates by analysts;

¢ announcements of technological innovations or new
products developed by us or our competitors; and

e acts of war, terrorism and political instability and
other events or factors.

In addition, the stock market has from time to time experienced
extreme price and volume fluctuations which have particularly
affected the market price for many high technology companies and
which often have been unrelated to the operating performance of
these companies. These broad market fluctuations may adversely
affect the market price of our common stock.

Our tax rate depends on earnings derived from certain foreign
manufacturing operations.

Our tax rate is heavily dependent upon the proportion of earnings
that we derive from our Ireland and Philippines manufacturing
operations and our ability to reinvest those earnings permanently
outside the United States. If the earnings of these operations as a
percentage of our total earnings were to decline significantly from
anticipated fevels, or should our ability to reinvest these earnings
be reduced, our effective tax rate would exceed the currently
estimated rate for 2002. In addition, should our intercompany
transfer pricing with respect to our Ireland or Philippines manufac-
turing operations require significant adjustment due to audits or
regulatory changes, our overall effective tax rate could increase.

We are, and may become, involved in litigation, which could materially
harm our business.

We are, and may in the future become, invoived in litigation involv-
ing our business, products or operations. The litigation process is
uncertain and includes the risk of an unexpected, unfavorable result.
We may be materially adversely impacted by any such litigation.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures About Market Rislk

APC, in the normal course of business, is exposed to market
risks relating to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates. The information required under this section related to
such risks is included in the Foreign Currency Activity section
of Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations in Item 7 of this Report
and is incorporated herein by reference.
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ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
AMERICAN POWER CONVERSION CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2001 and 2000

ASSETS
In thousands 2001 2000
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (52880410} $283,025
Short term investments M02%368! 25,000
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of
$18,712in 2001 and $20,085 in 2000 {Note 5) 2631595) 298,041
Inventories (Note 6) g b} 289,032
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 51935 23,488
Deferred income taxes {Note 8) 4% 32,346
Total current assets HF672499 950,932
Property, plant, and equipment:
Land, buildings, and improvements PAIAIG6! 72,136
- 28 Machinery and equipment 200000 178,558
g_ Office equipment, furniture, and fixtures FZ55i0) 68,765
?{ Purchased software 801469 25,633
§ BIaAR3Y) 345,092
i Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 628154 133,335
Net property, plant, and equipment 211,757
Goodwill and other intangibles, net (Note 3) WA 122,716
Deferred income taxes (Nate 8} 0892 9,678
Other assets (Note 4} K50 22,022
Total assets S1.nTR $1,317,105

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.




LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

o0 - 2000
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable SRR $105,031
Accrued expenses WA 37,946
Accrued compensation 640} 21,708
Accrued sales and marketing programs 231004 15,210
Deferred revenue A% a5y 11,847
Income taxes payable PONISH 14,377
Total current liabilities 1831078 206,119
Deferred tax liability (Note 8) 1168306} 13,805
Total liabifities g8z 218,924
Shareholders’ equity (Notes 9 and 10):
Common stock, $0.01 par value;
authorized 450,000 shares in 2001 and 2000;
issued 196,025 in 2001 and 195,071 in 2000 ES60] 1,951
Additional paid-in capital 265365 115,381
Retained earnings PEN) 986,176
Treasury stock, 250 shares, at cost {1880) (1,551)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss [(a¥927) (4,776}
Total shareholders’ equity F22i1R388 1,097,181
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
(Notes 12, 14 and 15)
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity Sia2082 $1,317,105
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ANMERICAN POWER CONVERSION CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME ‘
Vears ended December 31, 2001, 2080 and 1339

{n thousands except per share amounts 2004 2502 585
Net sales (Note 11) SI338 07 ‘[ $1,483,563 $1,344,931
Cost of goods sold o 895 ’ 867,680 747,389
Gross profit J B2y L 615,883 597,542
Costs and expenses: \

Marketing, selling, general, and administrative BiIAGLE! \ 311,612 283,725
Special charges (Note 4) - 47,900 —
Research and develapment L‘ 54646 ‘ 45,898 34,592
Total operating expenses J Bh7A56 ‘ 406,410 318,317
Operating income l 1348353 : 208,473 279,225
Other income, net 13,700 \ 23,838 13,292
Earnings before income taxes ‘ 588554 \ 233,311 292,517
Income taxes (Note 8) 45,143 L 67,660 86,293
Net income SIERGS ‘ $165,651 $206,224
Basic earnings per share J Sg8 ‘ $0.85 $1.07
Basic weighted average shares outstanding 1{ BT L 194,235 192,201
Diluted earnings per share \ 5ol 8) \ $0.83 $1.05
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding l 368793 [ 200,156 196,088

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AMERICAR POWER CONVERSION CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Vears ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

o [Q‘@E!i ulated
S0 Pag, fliieasuiy
Conmmon Siwels Baidsin Retained al 2

i thewsands Shares  Amonit Capial Eagnings} Shares jfiotal
Balances at

December 31, 1998 191,946  $1,919 $66,121 $614,301 (250)  $(1,551) $502 $681,292
Net income 206,224 206,224
Foreign currency

translation adjustment (2,308) (2,308)
Comprehensive income 203,916
Exercises of stock options 1,285 13 12,762 12,7175
Tax benefit from exercises of

stack options 2,565 2,565
Shares issued to Employee

Stock Purchase Plan 108 1 1,541 1,542
Balances at

December 31, 1939 193,339 1,933 82,989 820,525 (250} (1,551) {1,806) 902,090
Net income 165,651 165,651
Foreign currency

translation adjustment (2,970 (2,970)
Comprehensive income 162,681
Exercises of stock options 1,488 15 18,652 18,667
Tax benefit from exercises of

stock options 7,981 7,981
Shares issued to Employee

Stock Purchase Plan 131 1 1,761 1,762
Shares issued to acquire

ABL Electronics 13 2 3,998 4,000
Balances at

December 31, 2000 195,071 1,951 115,381 986,176 (250) (1,551) (4,776) 1,097,181
Net income 193.36% 113,365
Foreign currency

translation adjustment (59) (51)
Net unrealized loss

on investments {160) (100}
Comprehensive income 113214
Exercises of stock options 754 7 7,633 7,640
Tax benefit from exercises of

stock options 1,131 1,131
Shares issued to Employee

Stock Purchase Plan 200 2 2,220 2222
Balances at

December 31, 2001 195,025 1,860 $126,365 $1,099,541 (250)  ${1,551) $(4,927) $1.221,388

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AMERICAN POWER CONVERSION CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOQLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

In thousands 200 2006 1988

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income SNBK65) $165,651 $206,224

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization of property, plant, and equipment 37T 32,357 21,074
Gain on sale of property, plant, and equipment (.72 \ — (217)
Amortization of goodwill and other intangibles BRs59] i 8,586 3516
Provision for doubtful accounts J %5} 2,028 6,015
Provision for inventary i TBAE 4,632 6,724
Deferred income taxes (H0%651) (7,212) 65
Restructuring charges 51089; — —
Special charges ) = 47,900 —
Other, net (s (2,970} (2,382)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities,
excluding effects of acquisitions:

Accounts receivable 2967l {59,638) (42,469)
Inventories (9biiio {95,885) 45,481
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 553 ; {4,559) (482)
Other assets (BI048) , (69,262) 1,022
Accounts payable (28.4002) 8,898 3,451
Accrued expenses 970 {1,757) 8,926
Accrued compensation 68 (4,610) 3613
Accrued sales and marketing programs 2804 (1,902) (971}
Deferred revenue 246020 3,108 1,909
Income taxes payable 61885 (8,336) 10,428
Net cash provided by operating activities 324 17,029 277,867

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of held-to-maturity securities (7,778) (75,000) —

Maturities of held-to-maturity securities 5100 50,000 —

Purchases of available-for-sale securities 2510920 — —

Capital expenditures, net of capital grants {14 fR) (73,716} {36,003)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipment 5826} ‘ — 1,100

Acquisitions - ‘ (100,315) (8,426)
Net cash used in investing activities ] [[¥Z2200i]] (199,031) (43,329)

]

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of short term debt == (11,727} {12,438)

Proceeds from issuances of common stock 01862 20,429 14,317
Net cash provided by financing activities 91862 8,702 1,879

WNet change in cash and cash equivalents 5,908 (173,300) 236,417

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ABE 456,325 219,908

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 5288%240] $283,025 $456,325

Supplemental cash flow disclesures |

Cash paid during the year for:

Income taxes (net of tax refunds) 3451982 $80,240 $70,204

Details of acquisitions:

. Fair value of assets SPEN $138,242 $8,426
Liabilities = (36,614) —
Cash paid o= 101,628 8,426
Cash acquired e (1,313) —
Acquisitions §-= $100,315 $8,426

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS: In 2001, 2000 and 1999, the tax effect of the exercise of stock options resulted in increases to additional paid-in capital and
reductions to income taxes payable of 1,131, $7,981, and $2,565. In 2000, 113,273 shares were issued related to the acquisition of ABL Electronics
Corporation resulting in an increase to additional paid-capital of $3,998. In 2001, the Company recorded a restructuring charge that included a non-cash
component of $5,089 (Note 3). See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.




AMERICAN POWER CONVERSION
CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Business

American Power Conversion Corporation and its subsidiaries {the
*Company”) designs, develops, manufactures, and markets power
protection and management solutions for computer, communica-
tions and electronic applications worldwide. The Company's
products include uninterruptible power supply products ("UPSs"),
DC-power systems, electrical surge protection devices, power
conditioning products, precision cooling equipment, and associated
software, services, and accessories. These products are used with
sensitive electronic devices which rely on electric utility power
including, but not limited to, home electronics, personal computers
("PCs"), high-performance workstations, servers, networking equip-
ment, communications equipment, Internetworking equipment,
data centers, mainframe computers, and facilities. The Company's
principal markets are in North America, Europe, and the Far East.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
American Power Conversion Corporation and all of its majority-
owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and
transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from sales of the Company's products, including UPS
products, DC-power systems, electrical surge protection devices,
power conditioning products, precision cooling equipment, and
associated accessorigs, is recognized when title has passed at
the time of delivery of product as stipulated by the delivery terms
for the sales transactions. In addition, prior to revenue recognition,
the Company requires persuasive evidence of the arrangement,
that the price is fixed or determinable, and that collectibility is
reasonably assured. Provisions for sales returns and allowances,
warranties, and.uncollectible accounts are made at the time of
sale based on historical patterns of returns and contractual
provisions in accordance with the provisions of Statement 48 and
SAB 101. The Company's arrangements do not generally include
acceptance clauses. However, if an arrangement includes a
customer specified acceptance provision, acceptance generally
occurs at the Company's factory prior to delivery. Revenues from
the sale of service-related contracts are deferred and recognized
ratably over an established term, typically one to five years.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of funds on deposit, money
market savings accounts, and short-term commercial paper with
original maturities of three months or less.

Short Term Investments

At December 31, 2001, short term investments consisted of
investment grade corporate and municipal bonds, and at
December 31, 2000, short term investments consisted of U.S.
Government debt securities, with original maturities greater than
three months and less than or equal to one year. Held-to-maturity
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securities aggregated $79.8 milion and $25.0 million at December
31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, and are carried at amortized cost.
The cost of such held-to-maturity securities approximates fair
market value and the unrealized holding gains or losses were not
material. Available-for-sale securities aggregated $25.1 million at
December 31, 2001. There were no available-for-sale securities at
December 31, 2000. Available-for-sale securities are recorded at
fair value with net unrealized gains and losses reported, net of tax,
in other comprehensive income. At December 31, 2001, the gross
unrealized holding losses on available-for-sale securities were $0.1
million. Management determines the appropriate classification of
debt securities at the time of purchase and re-evaluates such
designation as of each balance sheet date. Debt securities are
classified as held-to-maturity when the Company has the positive
intent and ability to hold such securities to maturity.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market; cost being
determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.

Property, Plant, and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is
provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives indicated below. Leasehold improvements are amortized over
the shorter of the lease term or estimated useful life of the asset.

Land improvements 15 years
Buildings and improvements 40 years
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
Office equipment, furniture, and fixtures 3- 10 years
Purchased software 3years

Grant Monies

Grant monies are provided to certain of the Company’s sub-
sidiaries located in lreland to reimburse qualifying capital
expenditures and for hiring and maintaining certain employment
levels within Ireland. Grant monies received for costs incurred for
property, plant and eguipment are recorded as a reduction to the
basis of the corresponding depreciable assets. Grant monies
received for employee levels are recorded as a reduction of payroll
expense in the period in which the employee levels required by the
grant are reached. Grant monies are received subject to “clawback"
provisions that would obligate the Company to repay the grant
monies received should its employment levels fall below estab-
lished levels. At the end of each fiscal quarter, the Company
evaluates current conditions relating to the status of on-going oper-
ations and related employment levels in lreland to assess the
possibility that grant monies will need to be repaid and, if deemed
necessary, to accrue a repayment liability. Since the inception of its
grant agreements in 1884, the Company has not assessed the
need to accrue a repayment liability and, based upon a current
evaluation of its significant investment in Ireland and on-going
operational reguirements, the Company believes the possibility
that the clawback provisions will become effective is remote.

Goodwill and Other Intangibles

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value of the
net tangible assets and identifiable intangible assets of business-
es acquired and is being amortized on a straight-line basis over 15
years. Periodically, the Company evaluates the carrying value of
goodwill to assure that changes in facts and circumstances do not
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suggest that recoverability has been impaired. Should this evalua-
tion suggest impairment, the Company would determine recover-
ability based on an estimate of future undiscounted cash flows
resulting from its use of the asset and its eventual disposition, as
discussed below. This analysis relies on a number of factors,
including operating results, business plans, budgets, economic
projections, and changes in management's strategic direction or
market emphasis. In management'’s opinion, no impairment exists
at December 31, 2001. Goodwill and other intangibles are present-
ed net of accumulated amortization of $23.8 milion and $12.2
million at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The
Company adopted Statement 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets on January 1, 2002. As of December 31, 2001, the
Company had goodwill of $64.5 million less accumulated amortiza-
tion of $8.1 million with amortization expense of approximately
$3.3 million in 2001. The Company expects a reduction of approxi-
mately $3.3 million in goodwill amortization included in operating
expenses in 2002 as the resuit of the adoption of Statement 142.

Long-lived Assets

The Company accounts for fong-lived assets, including goodwill
and other intangibles, in accordance with the provisions of SFAS
No. 121, "Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and
for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of." This Statement requires
that long-lived assets, such as property, plant and equipment, and
certain identifiable intangibles be reviewed for impairment when-
ever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of
assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the
carrying amount of an asset to future net cash flows expected to
be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to be
impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the
amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the
fair value of the assets. Assets to be disposed of are reported at
the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.

Research and Development
Expenditures for research and development ("R&D"} are
expensed in the pericd incurred.

Warranties

The Company offers limited two-year and one-year warranties. The
provision for potential liabilities resulting from warranty claims is
provided at the time of sale based on historical patterns of returns and
contractual provisions in accordance with the provisions of Statement
48 and SAB 101. Customers can extend the basic warranty period of
select products, at an additional charge, for a period of one or three
additional years. Recognition of the revenue associated with the
extended warranty program commences on the date the extended
warranty becomes effective and is recognized on a straight-ine basis
over the extended warranty period. In addition, the Company offers
an Equipment Protection Policy in the U.S., Canada, and Europe.
Depending on the model and country, the policy provides up to
$150,000, 50,000 pounds sterling, or 100,000 euros for repair or
replacement of customers' hardware should a surge or lightning strike
pass through a Company unit. Other restrictions also apply.
Customers can also register the ProtectNet® line of data line surge
suppressors for a "“Double-Up" Supplemental Equipment Protection
Policy, under which the total recoverable limit under the Equipment
Protection Policy may be doubled (U.S. and Canada only). Most surge

suppressor products come with a lifetime product warranty. The
Company has experienced satisfactory field operating results, and
warranty and Equipment Protection Policy costs incurred to date have
not had a significant impact on the Company’s results of operations.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method.
Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between
the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to
taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax
assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income
in the period that includes the enactment date.

Deferred income taxes have not been provided for the undistributed
earnings of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries which aggregated
approximately $361.1 million at December 31, 2001. The Company
plans to reinvest all such earnings for future expansion. If such earn-
ings were distributed, taxes would increase by approximately $90.2
million. Additionally, the Company has tax holidays in China, India,
and the Philippines, which reduce or eliminate the income taxes
paid in those countries. These holidays begin to expire in 2003.
Based on the currently enacted regular corporate income tax rates
in these countries, the benefit to the Company of these tax holidays
was approximately $8.0 million, or $0.04 per diluted share, for the
year ended December 31, 2001; $6.8 million, or $0.03 per diluted
share, for the year ended December 31, 2000; and $4.5 million, or
$0.02 per diluted share, for the year ended December 31, 1998.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by
the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted eamings per share is computed by
dividing net income by the weighted average number of common
shares and dilutive potential common shares outstanding during
the period. Under the treasury stock method, the unexercised
options are assumed to be exercised at the beginning of the
period or at issuance, if later. The assumed proceeds are then
used to purchase common shares at the average market price
during the period. Potential common shares for which inclusion
would have the effect of increasing diluted earnings per share
(i.e., antiditutive) are excluded from the computation.

In thousands 20011 2850 9953

Basic weighted average

shares outstanding BT 194,235 192,201

Net effect of dilutive
potential common shares
outstanding based on the
treasury stock method using
the average market price 152 5,921 3,887

Diluted weighted average

shares outstanding j1196%793] 200,156 196,088

Antidilutive potential
common shares excluded

from the computation above

988 | 280 812




Stock-Based Compensation

As permitted by Statement 123, the Company applies APB Opinion
No. 25 and related Interpretations in accounting for its employee
stock-based compensation plans. The Company accounts for its
non-employee stock-based compensation awards in which goods
or services are the consideration received for the equity instru-
ments issued based on the fair value of the consideration received
or the fair value of the equity instruments issued, whichever
is more reliably measurable. Compensation cost recognized for
non-employees under these plans in the accompanying consolidat-
ed financial statements is not material.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and reported in
marketing, selling, general, and administrative expenses in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income. Such costs of
advertising, advertising production, trade shows, and other
activities are designed to enhance demand for the Company’s prod-
ucts. Advertising costs were $65.9 million in 2001, $85.5 million in
2000, and $94.4 million in 1999. There are no capitalized advertis-
ing costs in the accompanying consclidated balance sheets.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with account-
ing principles generally accepted in the United States requires man-
agement to make estimates and assumptions that affect the report-
ed amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

2. Acquisitions

Airflow

In the fourth quarter of 2000, the Company acquired privately-held
Airflow Company, a Maryland-based manufacturer of precision
cooling equipment primarily used in data center, Internet, and
telecommunications applications, for $22.5 million in cash plus
expenses, of which $4.0 million will be paid at scheduled dates
over three years in the event no indemnity claims arise. The
Company's cash outlays associated with the acquisition were
financed from operating cash. At December 31, 2001 and 2000,
the excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair value of
the tangible net assets acquired has been included in goodwill and
is being amortized on a straight-line basis over 15 years. The acqui-

sition has been accounted for as a purchase and, accordingly,
Airflow's results of operations are included in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition.

Advance Power

Early in the second quarter of 2000, the Company acquired
privately-held Advance Power Ltd., a U.K.-based manufacturer of
DC-based power solutions used in communications and Internet
applications, for $75.0 million in cash plus expenses. The
Company's cash outlays associated with the acquisition were
financed from operating cash. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, the
excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair value of the tan-
gible net assets acquired has been included in goodwill and is being
amortized on a straight-line basis over 15 years. The acquisition has
been accounted for as a purchase and, accordingly, Advance
Power's results of operations are included in the Company's
consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition.

ABL Electronics Corporation

Early in the second quarter of 2000, the Company acquired privately-
held ABL Electronics Corporation {"ABL"), a North American provider
of computer and network cables, switches, and other connectivity
products, for $8.0 million paid in a combination of cash and stock,
plus expenses. The Company's cash outlays associated with the
acquisition were financed from operating cash. At December 31,
2001 and 2000, the excess of the purchase price over the estimated
fair value of the tangible net assets acquired has been included in
goodwill and is being amortized on a straight-line basis over 15 years.
The acquisition has been accounted for as a purchase and, accord-
ingly, ABL's results of operations are included in the Company's
consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition.

Pro forma results from operations have not been provided as
the acquisitions are not considered material individually and in
the aggregate.

3. Restructuring

in the second half of 2001, the Company recorded $8.6 million
of restructuring costs of which $4.1 million and $4.5 million
were classified in cost of goods sold and operating expenses,
respectively. These costs were associated with manufacturing
downsizing actions primarily in Denmark and the U.K. and
included the effects of approximately 450 employee termina-
tions principally in the manufacturing area, facilities closures,
and the related impairment of tangible and intangible assets. A
summary of the restructuring costs is outlined as follows:

7]
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I s Eﬁ Giarges Reversals CasnibaymentSEErioflReriod
03 Activities:
Employee terminations $— $3,281 $— $— $(2,892) $389
Facilities closures — 2,003 (1,118} — — 885
Impairment of intangible assets — 3,728 (3,728) — — —
— 9,012 (4,846) — (2,892) 1,274
Q4 Activities:
Employee terminations 389 236 — — (173) 452
Facilities closures 885 138 (138) {885) — —
Impairment of intangible assets — 105 (105) — — —
1,274 479 (243) {885) (173) 452
$— $9,491 $(5,089) $(885) $(3,085) $452

The reversal occurring in Q4 relating to facilities closures represents the reversal of a cancelled lease liability racognized during the third quarter in connec-

tion with the closure of a leased facility in the United Kingdom. During Q4, the Company reversed its decision to vacate the leased facility.
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4. Special Charges

During the third and second quarters of 2000, the Company
agreed to license worldwide patent rights relating to uninterrupt-
ible power supply technology for lump-sum cash payments of
$17.0 million and $48.0 million, respectively. These license fees
were paid from operating cash during the third and second quar-
ters of 2000, respectively. The Company evaluated the portion of
the license fees that represented payment for prior use of the
subject technology and the portion that represented payment for
future use. Considering each of the Company's markets and the
historical and projected revenue realized in markets utilizing the
licensed technology, the Company estimated the present value of
royalty payments, basing this calculation on an appropriate royality
rate and the technology's contribution to the overall value of
affected products. Separate present values were calculated for
both historic and projected product sales; the historic values were
expensed and the projected values were capitalized. Accordingly,
write-offs of the fully paid-up portions of the patent licenses were
recognized in the Company’s consolidated statements of income
for the third and second quarters of 2000 as special charges to
pre-tax earnings of $17.5 million and $30.4 million, respectively,
including direct expenses of $1.5 million and $1.9 million, respec-
tively. The remaining balances of $1.0 million and $19.5 million
have been classified on the consolidated balance sheet as long
term assets and are being amortized on a straight-line basis over
three years and nine years, respectively, the estimated remaining
economic lives of the patent licenses.

8. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are generally not concentrated in any
geographic region or industry. Collateral is usually not required
except for certain international transactions for which the
Company requires letters of credit to secure payment. The
Company estimates an allowance for doubtful accounts based on
the credit worthiness of its customers as well as general econom-
ic conditions. Consequently, an adverse change in those factors
could affect the Company’s estimate of its bad debts.

6. [nventories

Inventories consist of the following:

8. Income Taxes

Total federal, state, and foreign income tax expense (benefit) from
continuing operations for the years ended December 31, 2001,
2000, and 1999 consists of the following:

In thousands Current Defarred Total
2w
Federal 5338851 S (7584 $26803
Siate p653] ¥425) 62228
Forsign [4%30 (1645) (L2651
’ ) Ros5ieaz S SA5N88
2000:
Federal $53,319 $(3,850) $49,469
State 8,073 {794} 7,219
Fareign 12,559 (1,647) 10,912
$73,951 $(6,291) $67,660
1893:
Federal $61,756 $(244) $61,512
State 8,024 (239) 7,785
Foreign 16,448 548 16,996
$86,228 $65

$86,293

Income tax expense attributable to continuing operations amounted to
$45.2 million in 2001, $67.7 million in 2000, and $86.3 million in 1999,
(effective rates of 28.5%, 29.0%, and 29.5%, respectively). The actual
expense for 2001, 2000 and 1998 differs from the ‘expected’ tax
expense (computed by applying the statutory U.S. federal corporate tax
rate of 35% to earnings before income taxes) as follows:

in thousands Z80]) 2008
Raw materials S158830 gm;__ug120,685 -
Work in process 95238 | 15,755
Finished goods 1838258 152,592
53501635 ; $289,032

7. Revolving Credit Agreements and Short Term Debt

At December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Company had available for
future borrowings $65.0 million under an unsecured line of credit
agreement at a floating interest rate equal to the bank's cost of
funds rate plus .625% and an additional $7.0 million under unse-
cured line of credit agreements with a second and third bank at
similar interest rates. No borrowings were outstanding under
these facilities during fiscal years 2001 and 2000, or at December
31, 2001 and 2000.

In thousands 2001 2506 1888

Computed "expected”

tax expense 15568394 $81659  $102,381

State income taxes, net of

federal income tax benefit 3064 4,13 5,060

Foreign earnings taxed at

rates lower than U.S.

statutory rate {(principally

Ireland and the Philippines) | {17,421) {16,616) {18,754)

Foreign sales corporation §1#352) {1,754) (1,208)

Other 2288 (360} (1,100
] S458188 $67,660  $86,293




The domestic and foreign components of earnings before income
taxes were $79.6 million and $79.0 million, respectively, for 2001;
$145.3 million and $88.0 million, respectively, for 2000; and
$188.5 million and $104.0 million, respectively, for 1999. Total
income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2001,
2000 and 1999 was allocated as follows:

In thousands 20041 2000 1939

Income from continuing

operations SA5888 $67,660 $86,293

Shareholders' equity,

for compensation
expense for tax purposes
in excess of amounts
recognized for financia!
statement purposes

{7,981) (2,565)

{0,080 l
| SWEE | $59679

$83,728

At December 31, 2001 and 2000, deferred income tax assets and
liabilities result from temporary differences in the recognition
of income and expense for tax and financial reporting purposes.
The sources and tax effects of these temporary differences are
presented below:

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, the Company
considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or
all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. At December 31,
2001, the Company provided a valuation allowance on certain of
its deferred tax assets because of uncertainty regarding their real-
izability due to certain net operating losses generated in 2001 for
the start up of Brazilian operations.

9, Stock Plans

Stock-based Compensation Plans

At December 31, 2001, the Company had four stock option plans
and an employee stock purchase plan, which are described below.
As permitted by Statement 123, the Company applies APB Opinion
No. 25 and related Interpretations in accounting for its employee
stock-based compensation plans. The Company accounts for its
non-employee stock-based compensation awards in which goods or
services are the consideration received for the equity instruments
issued based on the fair value of the consideration received or the
fair value of the equity instruments issued, whichever is more
reliably measurable. Compensation cost recognized for non-employ-
ees under these plans in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements is not material. Had employee compensation costs for
such plans been determined in accordance with SFAS No. 123, the
Company’s net income and earnings per share would have been
reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated below:

In thousands except per share amounts 2001 2000 1999
Netincome As reported SUIBIEE | $165651  $206,224
Pro forma SR | $133115  $181,123
Basic earnings  As reported [ $0.85 $1.07
per share Pro forma 50530 $0.69 $0.94
Diluted earnings  As reported 150158 $0.83 $1.05
per share Pro forma 150833} $0.65 $0.92

The pro forma effect on net income for 2001, 2000 and 1999 is
not representative of the pro forma effect on net income in
future years because it does not take into consideration pro
forma compensation expense related to stock option grants
made prior to 1995. The weighted average fair value of stock
options granted during 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $10.32,
$11.43, and $9.35, respectively. The Company estimates the fair
value of each option as of the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes pricing model with the following weighted average
assumptions used for grants in 2001, 2000 and 1999:

In thousands 00 2000
Deferred tax assets

Allowance for doubtful accounts 48524 $5,060
Additional costs inventaried for

tax purposes 1,629
Intercompany inventory profits &40 4,520
Allowances for sales and

marketing programs 910 39) 5,837
Inventory obsolescence reserve Y956 4,302
Accrual for compensation and

compensated absences &6 2,912
Reserve for warranty costs RAR 2,449
Deferred revenue 3835 3918
Intangible assets 12,008 9,585
Other Bl03j] 1,812
Total gross deferred tax assets bi338] 42,024
Less valuation aliowance ({653 —
Net deferred tax assets &R 42,024
Deferred tax liabilities

Excess of tax over financial

statement depreciation j11282415) 11,441
Other A8 2,364
Total deferred tax liabilities 168306] 13,805
Net deferred income taxes 5381873 $28,219

am 2000 1839
Expected volatility % & 70% 59%
Dividend yield = f - —
Risk-free interest rate 8% | 5.9% 5.3%
Expected life Byears 6 years 5years
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Stock Option Plans

On April 21, 1997, the Company'’s shareholders approved the 1997
Stock Option Plan and on June 19, 1987 approved the 1987 Stock
Option Plan (collectively the *Plans’). The 1997 and 1987 Stock
Option Plans authorized the grant of options for up to 12.0 million
shares and 21.6 million shares, respectively, of common stock. On
May 7, 1999, the Company's shareholders authorized an additional
12.0 million shares under the 1997 Stock Option Plan. Options
granted under the Plans are either {a) options intended to consti-
tute incentive stock options {'ISOs’) under the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986 (the "Code’) or (b) non-qualified options. Incentive
stock options may be granted under the Plans to employees or offi-
cers of the Company. Non-qualified options may be granted to
consultants, directors (whether or not they are employees),
employees or officers of the Company.

ISOs granted under the Plans may not be granted at a price less
than the fair market value of the common stock on the date of grant
{or 110% of fair market value in the case of employees or officers
holding 10% or more of the voting stock of the Company). The
aggregate fair market value of shares, for which ISOs granted to any
employee are exercisable for the first time by such employee
during any calendar year {(under all stock option plans of the
Company and any related corporation), may not exceed $100,000.
Non-qualified options granted under the Plan may not be granted at
a price less than the lesser of {a) the book value per share of
common stock as of the end of the fiscal year of the Company
immediately preceding the date of such grant, or (b) 50% of the fair
market value of the common stock on the date of grant.

Options granted under the Plans before December 1, 1995 vested
25% at the end of the first year and 12.5% at the end of each six
month period thereafter. Options granted after December 1, 1995
and before February 14, 1997 vest 20% at the end of the second
year and 20% at the end of each year thereafter. Options granted
after February 14, 1997 vest 25% at the end of the first year and
12.5% at the end of each six month pericd thereafter.

On April 21, 1997, the Company's shareholders approved the 1997
Non-employee Director Stock Option Plan and on May 20, 1993
approved the 1993 Non-employee Director Stock Option Plan
(collectively the *Director Plans"). The 1897 and 1993 Director Plans
authorized the grant of options for up to 400,000 shares and 80,000
shares of common stock, respectively. In 2001, two directors were
entitled to participate in the Director Plans with each receiving a
grant of options as of February 12, 2001 for 20,000 shares at an
exercise price of $13.25; February 12, 2000 for 20,000 shares at an
exercise price of $29.84; February 12, 1999 for 20,000 shares at an
exercise price of $19.94 (i.e., the market price on the dates of
grant). In addition, two new non-employee directors elected at the
June 2001 Annual Meeting of Shareholders were each granted
on August 9, 2001 under the 1997 Stock Option Plan options to
purchase 13,643 shares at an exercise price of $13.57.

Options granted under the 1997 Director Plan, and the options
granted on August 9, 2001 under the 1997 Stock Option Plan, vest
25% at the end of the second year and 9.375% at the end of each
six month period thereafter. Options granted under the 1993
Director Plan vested 25% at the end of the first year and 25%
annually thereafter.

Options granted under all stock option plans before January 1,
1993 expired not more than five years from the date of grant, if
unexercised. Options granted under all stock option plans after
January 1, 1993 expire not more than ten years from the date
of grant (five years in the case of ISOs granted to ten percent
shareholders). The outstanding options at December 31, 2000
expire at various dates through 2009. Options granted terminate
within a specified period of time following termination of an
optionee’s employment or position as a director or consultant
with the Company.

A summary of the status of the Company'’s stock option plans as of
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, and changes during the years
ending on those dates is presented below:

Skarss in thousands 2000 1888

Weighted Weighted

Average Average

Exercise Exercise

Sharas Shares Price Shares Price

Outstanding at beginning of year 191002 12,082 $14.00 9,560 $12.23
Granted 54 S040.3% 9,448 $16.41 5,097 $16.26
Exercised {7 1008 (1,488) $12.63 (1,285) $10.12
Terminated A Si20} (1,040) $15.50 {1,290 $13.50
Outstanding at end of year jl72649] S8 19,002 $15.26 12,082 $14.00
Exercisable at end of year B $6 4,531 $13.01 2,696 $11.40
Shares reserved at end of year 72,750 ; 23,514 25,115




The following table summarizes information about stock options
outstanding at December 31, 2001:

Shares in thousands Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Average Weighted Weighted

Remaining Average Average

Range of Shares Contractual Exercise Shares Exercise
Exercise Prices Qutstanding Life {years) Price Exercisable Price
$4.56 to $6.82 592 38 $4.97 498 $5.01
$8.30 to $11.69 1,528 5.3 $9.44 1,430 $9.29
$12.43t0 $17.71 11,760 17 $13.97 5,218 $14.67
$19.30 to $24.80 3522 8.1 $22.99 1,229 $22.94
$29,00 to $31.13 247 8.2 $30.69 79 $30.85
17,649 74 $15.31 8,454 $14.55

Stock Purchase Plan

On April 21, 1997, the Company’s shareholders approved an
Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the "Plan") to provide substantially
all employees an opportunity to purchase shares of its common
stock through payroll deductions, in an aggregate amount up to
10% of eligible compensation. Semiannually, participant account
balances are used to purchase shares of stock at the lesser of 85%
of the fair market value of shares on the grant date or the exercise
date. The aggregate number of shares purchased by an employee
may not exceed 8,000 shares annually (subject to limitations
imposed by the Internal Revenue Code). The employee stock pur-
chase plan expires on February 11, 2007. A total of 2.0 million
shares are available for purchase under the Plan. During 2001,
under the Plan, 102,079 shares were issued at $11.17 per share
and 98,851 shares were issued at $10.94 per share. During 2000,
under the Plan, 41,671 shares were issued at $18.75 per share and
89,173 shares were issued at $11.00 per share. During 1999,
under the Plan, 54,706 shares were issued at $14.03 per share and
53,608 shares were issued at $14.45 per share.

10. Betirement Benefits

Employee Stock Ownership Plans

At December 31, 2001, the Company had noncontributory
Employee Stock Ownership Plans (the "ESOP") covering substan-
tially all employees in North America and Iretand. Contributions to
the ESOP are based on a percentage of eligible compensation and
are determined by the Company’s Board of Directors at its
discretion, subject to the limitations established by U.S. and Ireland
tax laws. The ESOP held 7.7 miilion shares, 8.3 million shares, and
8.8 million shares of common stock at December 31, 2001,
December 31, 2000, and December 31, 1999, respectively. No
shares were contributed to the ESOP in 2001, 2000 or 1999.

Employee Savings Plan

On May 1, 1997, the Company established an employee savings
plan (the "Savings Plan’} that qualifies as a deferred salary arrange-
ment under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,
as amended, covering substantially all North American employees.
The Savings Plan allows eligible employees to contribute up to
15% of their compensation on a pre-tax basis subject to certain

limitations. The Company matches, with Company common stock,
100% of the first 3% of employee contributions plus 50% of the
next 3% of employee contributions. Employees are fully vested in
their employer matching contributions. Employees may diversify
employer matching contributions to other investment options
available under the Savings Plan.

The Company aiso sponsars pension plans in several foreign locations.

The Company's pension contributions in 2001, 2000 and 1998
amounted to approximately $9.2 million, $4.9 million, and $4.3 mil-
lion, respectively.

11. Operating Segment and

Geographic Information

Segment accounting policies are the same as policies described
in Note 1.

Basis for Presentation

The Company operates primarily within one industry consisting
of three reportable operating segments by which it manages its busi-
ness and from which various offerings are commonly combined to
develop a total solution for the customer. These efforts primarily
incorporate the design, manufacture, and marketing of power
protection equipment and related software and accessories for com-
puter, communications, and related equipment. The Company's
three segments are: Small Systems, Large Systems, and Other.
Each of these segments address global markets.

The Small Systems segment develops power solutions for
servers and networking equipment commonly used in local area
and wide area networks and for personal computers and sensi-
tive electronics. Major product offerings include the Smart-UPS,
Matrix-UPS, Symmetra Power Array and Back-UPS family of
UPSs. Also included are the SurgeArrest surge suppressors as
well as cabling and connectivity solutions. Additional acces-
sories and software products are offered to enhance the man-
agement of these networks. Products include PowerChute soft-
ware, MasterSwitch power distribution units and NetShelter
server enclosures. Products are sold to home and commercial
users primarily through an indirect selling model consisting of

.
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computer distributors and dealers, value added resellers, mass
merchandisers, catalog merchandisers, E-commerce vendors,
and strategic partnerships.

The Large Systems segment produces large system solutions
that provide power and availability solutions for data centers,
facilities and communications equipment. Product offerings
include Siicon UPSs, NetworkAIR precision cooling equipment
and DC-power systems. Products are sold to commercial users
primarily through an indirect selling model consisting of value
added resellers and strategic partnerships.

The Other segment provides Web-based informational, product,
and selling services as well as replacement batteries for the
Company's UPS products and notebook computers.

The Company measures the profitability of its segments based
on direct contribution margin. Direct contribution margin
includes R&D, marketing, and administrative expenses directly
attributable to the segments and excludes certain expenses
which are managed outside the reportable segments. Costs
excluded from segment profit are indirect operating expenses,
primarily consisting of selling and corporate expenses, and
income taxes. Expenditures for additions to long-lived assets
are not tracked or reported by the operating segments,
although depreciation expense is allocated to and reported by
the operating segments.

Summary operating segment information is as follows:

In thausands P00l 2006 1993
Segment net sales
Smal! Systems SIKZ6036) $1,265,264 $1,236,413
Large Systems Pail6i0) 193,623 100,852
Other | 391551] 14,643 —
Total segment net sales [IFa2ip260) 1,473,530 1,337,265
Shipping and handling revenues 61052 10,033 1,666
Total net sales 81488302 $1,483,563 $1,344,931
!
Segment profits |
Small Systems 282N 571 $558,548 $554,385
Large Systems (310628)) 6,261 17,310
Other ] )] 7,192 —
]
Total segment profits 37516611 572,601 571,695
Shipping and handling net costs 20N 20,745 16,988
Indirect operating expenses BHOS 342,383 275,482
Other income, net {BNZ00) 23,838 13,292
Earnings before income taxes $1581553] i $233,311 $292,517
Segment depreciation
Small Systems 152206924 $18,517 $17,072
Large Systems B2 4,885 3,130
Other ] 65} 7 —
Total segment depreciation 1301969 23,479 20,202
Corporate B08; 8,878 6,872
Tota! depreciation ) Saas) $32,357 $27,074

o




Summary geographic information is as follows:

In thousands ) 2000 1999
Net sales
United States 7671058 $787,359 $708,777
North and Latin America excluding United States 20561 65,330 70,372
Europe, Middle East, and Africa Bi2%62 395,417 385,486
Far East ENLEG 235,457 180,296
8488312 $1483563 $1,344,831
Capital expenditures
United States I515%387% $36,776 $19,329
Europe 602 13,427 8,851
Philippines 1982370 19,195 1,823
Other Far East 196710 4,318 —
Latin America 31967 — —
$472859 $73,716 $36,003
Long-lived assets
United States STA0NI92) $150,929 $80,066
Europe 111358363 152,913 84,866
Philippines 80,740 47,798 31,558
Other Far East 1218209} 14,533 11,438
Latin America a%63) — —
153534273} $366,173 $207,928

Net sales are attributed to geographic regions based on location of customer. No individual foreign country is material in relation to total net sales.

The Company closely monitors the credit worthiness of its cus-
tomers, adjusting credit policies and limits as deemed necessary.
Two customers, Ingram Micro and Tech Data Product Management,
accounted for approximately 15.5% and 13.3%, respectively, of the
Company's net sales in 2001, and 14.9% and 11.4%, respectively, of
the Company's net sales in 2000. No single customer comprised
10% or more of the Company’s net sales in 1998. The majority of the
Company's sales to Ingram Micro and Tech Data Product
Management are included in the Small Systems reportable segment.

12. Litigation

The Company is involved in various claims and legal actions
arising in the ordinary course of business. The Company does
not believe that the ultimate disposition of these matters will
have a material adverse effect on its consolidated financial
position or results of operations or liquidity.

13. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of cash, cash equivalents, accounts
receivable, short-term debt, accounts payable, and accrued
liabilities approximate their fair values because of the short
duration of these instruments.

14. Commitments

The Company has several non-cancelable operating leases,
primarily for warehousing and office space, expiring at various
dates through 2010. These leases contain renewal options for
periods ranging from one to nine years and require the Company
to pay its proportionate share of utilities, taxes, and insurance.
Rent expense under these leases for 2001, 2000 and 1999 was
$7.7 million, $6.7 million, and $4.3 million, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under these non-cancelable
leases are: 2002 - $7.2 million; 2003 - $5.4 million; 2004 -
$4.3 million; 2005 - $3.1 million; 2006 - $1.7 million; and $5.8
million thereafter.

15. Contingencies

The Company has agreements with the Industrial Development
Authority of Ireland ("IDA’) under which the Company receives
grant monies for costs incurred for machinery, equipment, and
building improvements for its Galway and Castlebar facilities equal
to 40% and 60%, respectively, of such costs up to a maximum of
$13.1 million for Galway and $1.3 million for Castlebar. Such grant
monies are subject to the Company meeting certain employment
goals and maintaining operations in Ireland until termination of the
respective agreements. The total cumulative amounts of capital
grant claims submitted and received through December 31, 2001
for the Galway facility were approximately $9.6 million and $9.0
million, respectively. The total cumulative amount of capital grant
claims submitted through December 31, 2001 for the Castlebar
facility was $0.3 million; no capital grant claims had been received
for the Castlebar facility. Under separate agreements with the DA,
the Company receives direct reimbursement of training costs at
its Galway and Castlebar facilities for up to $3,000 and $12,500,
respectively, per new employee hired. The total cumulative
amounts of training grant claims submitted and received through
December 31, 2001 for the Galway facility were approximately
$1.0 million and $1.0 million, respectively. The total cumulative
amount of training grant claims submitted and received through
December 31, 2001 for the Castlebar facility were approximately
$1.2 miltion and $0.7 million, respectively.
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In addition, the Company executed agreements in 1994 with an
unrelated company to acquire the 280,000 square foot manufactur-
ing and distribution facility presently occupied for one (1) Irish Pound
{equivalent to approximately $1.50). As additional consideration for
the facility, the Company assumed a contingent liability of
approximately $5.2 million as part of the Company’s agreement with
the IDA. The contingent liability is canceled upon successful com-
pletion of the terms of the agreement.

16. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
The following is a summary of quarterly results of operations in
thousands except per share amounts:

at Qz a3 o4
2001
Net seles 53641500 8601 S3 BRI
Gross profit Si22%93) 1331057 SITEIG Snae
fuet income S2A194 1S34%99 5228295 $298077]
Besit sarmings per share 5081] SO8IE) SONK S ONii5)
Basic ws g :
sharas suls 958157 88,178 95837 JH95%585
Diivied samings per shars . 8004 ISONES] SN SOR]
Divted weighied svarage
shares eutstanding U600 972824 961522 111961966
2000
Net sales $311,196 $368,036 $397,034 $407,297
Gross profit $141,955 $160,418 $164,039 $149,471
Net income $47,106 $35,113 $45,009 $38,423
Basic earnings per share $0.24 $0.18 $0.23 $0.20
Basic weighted average
shares outstanding 193,450 194,089 194,600 194,761
Diluted earnings per share $0.24 $0.17 $0.22 $0.20
Diluted weighted average
shares outstanding 199,530 201,040 200,112 196,350

17. Subsequent Event

During the first quarter of 2002, the Company announced global
headcount reductions of approximately 17%. These actions
impact personnel worldwide throughout a broad range of func-
tions within the organization. The majority of these terminations
are the result of the Company's recent decision to consolidate
its Philippines-based manufacturing operations resulting in the
closing of its manufacturing facility in the province of Laguna.
These actions have been and are being implemented during the
first half of 2002.

[tem 9. Changes in and Disagreements
with Accountants on Accounting and
Financial Disclosure

Not appiicable.




Part I

item 10. Directors of the Registrant

Information with respect to Directors may be found under the
caption “Occupations of Directors” appearing in the Company's
definitive Proxy Statement for the 2002 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders. Such information is incorporated herein by reference.

[tem 11. Executive Compensation

The information set forth under the caption "Executive
Compensation® appearing in the Company's definitive Proxy
Statement for the 2002 Annual Meeting of Shareholders is
incorporated herein by reference.

ltem 12. Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management

The information set forth under the caption, *Management and
Principal Holders of Voting Securities’ appearing in the Company's
definitive Proxy Statement for the 2002 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships

and Related Transactions

The information set forth under the captions, 'Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions® appearing in the
Company's definitive Proxy Statement for the 2002 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders is incorporated herein by reference.

Part IV

ltem 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement
Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K
{a) Documents filed as part of Form 10-K

1. Consolidated Financial Statements
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been included in ltem 8 of this report.

Consoclidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2001
and 2000

Consolidated Statements of Income for each of the
three years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’
Equity for each of the three years ended December
31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of
the three years ended December 31, 2001, 2000
and 1999

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
2. Consolidated Financial Statement Schedules

Schedule Number Description

] Valuation and Qualifying 48
Accounts and Reserves

Page No.

Schedules other than those listed above have been omitted since
they are either not required or the information required is included
in the consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto.

KPMG LLP's reports with respect to the above listed consolidated
financial statements and consolidated financial statement sched-
ule are included herein on pages 45 and 46.
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3. Exhibit Listing

Exhibit Number

3.0

3.02

4.01

402

10.01

10.02

10.03

10.04

10.05

10.06

10.07

10.08

10.09

10.10

10.11

1012

10.13

Description

Articles of Organization of the Registrant, as amended
By-Laws of the Registrant, as amended and restated

Shareholder Rights Agreement, dated as of
September 2, 1998, between the Company and
BankBoston, N.A.

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of April 28,
2000, by and among ABL Acquisition Corporation,
Randalt R. Amon, Daniel Bryan, William C. Litsinger
Mll, Jack L. Ottenheimer and Kevin W. Campion (4.02)

1987 Stock Option Plan of the Registrant (X)

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the
Registrant's 1987 Stock Option Plan (X)

Form of the Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement
under the Registrant's 1987 Stock Option Pian (X)

The Registrant's Employee Stock Ownership Plan
Trust Agreement dated December 30, 1987 (X)

The Registrant's Employee Stock Gwnership Plan
dated December 30, 1987, as amended and restated (X)

Employment Agreement dated June 16, 1986
between the Company and Rodger B. Dowdell, Jr. (X)

Unsecured line of credit agreement dated June 29,
1991 between the Registrant and Rhode Island
Hospital Trust National Bank

Unsecured line of credit agreement dated
December 30, 1991 between the Registrant and
Fleet National Bank

Amendment dated December 30, 1892 to Unsecured
line of credit agreement between the Registrant and
Fleet National Bank

Grant agreement dated February 16, 1994 between
the Registrant and Industrial Development Authority
of Ireland

Contract for Sale dated January 31, 1994 between
the Registrant and Digital Equipment International

Management Agreement dated January 31, 1994
between the Registrant and Digital Equipment
International

License Agreement dated January 31, 1994 between
the Registrant (Grantor} and Digital Equipment
International {Licensee)

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

21

23

Grant of Options Agreement dated January 31, 1994
between the Registrant and Digital Equipment
International

Memorandum Agreement dated January 31, 1994
between the Registrant and Digital Equipment
International

1993 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan {X)

Letter Agreement dated June 22, 1995 to amend
loan agreement dated December 30, 1991 by and
between Registrant and Fleet National Bank

Letter Agreement dated October 11, 1995 to amend
loan agreement dated December 30, 1991 by and
between Registrant and Fleet National Bank

Purchase and Sale Contract dated April 12, 1995
between the Registrant and Trustees of Normac-
Billerica Associates Il u/d/t dated October 11, 1978

American Power Conversion Corporation B.V. Profit
Sharing Scheme dated September 25, 1996 (X}

1997 Non-Employee Director Stack Gption Plan of
the Registrant (X)

1997 Stock Option Plan of the Registrant {X)
1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan of the Registrant (X)

Form of Change-in-Control Severance Agreement
dated as of July 5, 2000 entered into by the Company
with each of Rodger B. Dowdell, Jr. and Neil E.
Rasmussen. (X) {10.24)

Form of Change-in-Control Severance Agreement
dated as of July 5, 2000 entered into by the Company
with each of Donald M. Muir and Aaron L. Davis and
dated as of February 7, 2001 entered into by the
Company with Edward M. Machala. {X} {10.25)

Subsidiaries of Registrant

Consent of KPMG LLP

{X) Indicates a management contract or any compensatory plan,
contract or arrangement.

{b) Reports on Form 8-K
No reports on Form 8-K have been filed by the Registrant during
the quarter ended December 31, 2001.




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
American Power Conversion Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of American Power Conversion Corporation and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each
of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2001, These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
American Power Conversion Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the resuits of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Providence, Rhode Island

January 31, 2002, except as to Note 17, @ M@ L@

which is as of March 28, 2002
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
American Power Conversion Corporation:

Under date of January 31, 2002, except as to Note 17, which is as of March 28, 2002, we reported on the consolidated balance sheets
of American Power Conversion Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001, and 2000, and the related consolidated
statements of income, changes in shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year pericd ended
December 31, 2001, which are contained in the annual report on Form 10-K for the year 2001. In connection with our audits of the
aforementioned consoclidated financial statements, we also audited the related financial statement schedule listed in Item 14(a)(2).
This financial statement schedule is the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the financial statement schedule based on our audits.

In our opinion, such financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as
a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

&
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Providence, Rhode Island
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January 31, 2002




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

AMERICAN POWER CONVERSION CORPORATION

@\%ﬁzﬂﬁﬂ} Py

Donald M. Muir
Senior Vice President, Finance & Administration,
Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer
Date: March 25, 2002

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following persons on behalf of
the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on the date indicated.

Rodger B. Dowdell, Jr. Donald M. Muir
Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer and Director Senior Vice President, Finance & Administration,
{principal executive officer) Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer
Date: March 25, 2002 (principal financial and accounting officer) 4

Date: March 25, 2002
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sainteudig

Neil E. Rasmussen Emanuel E. Landsman
Senior Vice President, Chief Technology Officer and Director Vice President and Director
Date: March 25, 2002 Date: March 25, 2002

7 \

4
Ervin F. Lyon James D. Gerson
Director Director
Date: March 25, 2002 Date: March 25, 2002
% A Yok
John G. Kassakian John F. Keane, Sr.
Director Director

Date: March 25, 2002 Date: March 25, 2002
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Valuation accounts deducted from assets to which they apply:

AMERICAN POWER CONVERSION CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Valvation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves

For the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1993

Schedule Il

|

t

Balanes & Ehanged @ Whie O/ agEny
I thousends Beginninglefyear andlExpienses Talken ff Ve
Allewance for Doubtful
Accounts Receivable
2003 $20,985 84,735 ${6,148) f18712
2000 19,543 2,028 (1,486) 20,085
1998 15471 6,015 (1,943) 19,543
Inventery Reserve
2001 $20,481 $18.015 $(5,646) §32,850
2000 17,080 4,632 (1,231) 20,481
1999 13,278 6,724 (2,922) 17,080
Defzrred Tax Assst
Valuation Allowance
2001 §— $1,653 $— $1.658

2000

1999




Board of Directors

Rodger B. Dowdell, Jr.
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
American Power Conversion Corporation

James D. Gerson
Vice President, Fahnestock & Co.

John G. Kassakian
MIT Professor of Electrical Engineering
Director, MIT Laboratory for Electromagnetic and
Electronic Systems

John F. Keane, Sr.
Founder and Chairman of the Board of Directors
Keane, Inc.

Emanuel E. Landsman
Vice President
American Power Conversion Corporation

Ervin F. Lyon

Neil E. Rasmussen
Senior Vice President and Chief Technical Officer
American Power Conversion Corporation

Executive Officers

Rodger B. Dowdell, Jr.
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Neil E. Rasmussen
Senior Vice President and Chief Technical Officer

Edward W. Machala
Senior Vice President, Operations and
Chief Operations Officer

Donald M. Muir
Senior Vice President, Finance & Administration,
Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer

Emanuel E. Landsman
Vice President

Aaron L. Davis
Vice President, Marketing and Communications

Peter A. Rumsey
Vice President, Global Sales

American Power Conversion
Corporation
Corporate Headquarters

132 Fairgrounds Road

West Kingston, Rhode Island USA 02892
(401) 789-5735

www.apc.com

Transfer Agent and Registrar

EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.

P. 0. Box 43010

Providence, Rl 02940-3010
Shareholder Inquiries (781) 575-3120
http://www.equiserve.com

Annual Meeting

An Annual Meeting of Sharehalders of the Company will
be held on Tuesday, June 11 at 10:00 a.m. local time,
Radisson Hotel Milford, The Regency Room, 11 Beaver
Street, Milford, MA 01757, (508) 478-7010.

Common Stock

Common Stock of American Power Conversion
Corporation is traded on The Nasdaq Stock Market®
under the symbol APCC, and on the Pacific Exchange Inc.
under the symbol ACC.

Auditors

KPMG LLP
600 Fleet Center
Providence, Rhode island 02903

Qutside Counsel

Testa, Hurwitz & Thibeault, LLP
High Street Tower

125 High Street

Boston, Massachusetts 02110

Shareholder Information

Additional copies of the Company's Annual Report on
Form 10-K are available to shareholders on request
without charge. Send requests to:

APC

Attn: Investor Relations

132 Fairgrounds Road

West Kingston, Rhode Island 02892

You may telephone requests to our investor relations
line at (401) 789-5735, ext. 299¢; or e-mail requests to:
investorrelations@apce.com

Visit the investor relations page on APC's Web site to
review APC’s quarterly reports and current information,

sign up for e-mail news lists or access special shareholder

product promotions:
http://www.apc.com/corporate/investor/

APC’s 2001 Annual Report was produced by APC
Marketing Communications and Financial teams.

Printed by Merrill Daniels at a cost of approximately
$0.55 per piece,
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Incorperated In 1981, American Power Conversion Cerporation (APC) designs, manufactures ana
markets products and services thal Improve the reliability, preductivity and avallaikiiity of informatien
systems worldwida by protecting hardware and dete from the engeing threat of power disturbances.

Our selutions indude surge suppressers, uninterupiivie power supplies (UPSs), DC-based powser
systems, precision eooling equipment, cabling and connectivity solutions, pewer sonditioning
eauipment, releted seftware as well as professions! and consuliing services for communications,
computer and computerralated eguipment. Protectsd appiications insivele faslities, shes, mainframe
computers, dale conters, wide arse networks (WANS), losal ares netwerks (LANS), Irternet and
intranet eguipment, midrange computers, telecommunications eguipment, home and offiee werksta-

tfons, &nd 8 variety of consumer elesironics.

We glse protest these apzlicztions against pewer problems on date, Retweork, serial, eoaxial (CATY)

and wlephens lines.

APC products ensuring avaliability wherever Te listen © our custormers.
data is created), ransmited oF Stored. Their weants, needs and wishes are our
‘ T TT T srategle blueprint.

To fustify eur expendiures a8 they relaie to
our goals.

To creete delighted customers by impraving

the manegeability, avelilability end perfermence
Te quantify sll aspests of our business in erder

N s e eraate benchmerks for syucsess.
threugh the rapid delivery of innevetive selutiens

of Informetion and ecommunicatien sysiems

to real customer erofslems. To gveld bureaueracy.
: S s - Empleyees must make dirset contributions
o our goals.

-To emphasize quality.
We believe thet good enough never is.

o respond quickly and decisively to opperunity.

To ereate an environment where ‘deas e
encouraged, reeognized and rewarded.

Te help employees grow pereonally and
professionally.

To werk together toware eur goals and be
rewarded together when they are achicved.
_T’@ commit t leackership in every aspast

‘of our business.

Lagencary Relfability”
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